
ASTURIA 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

Advanced Meeting Package 

Regular Meeting 

Tuesday 

January 30, 2024 
6:00 p.m. 

Location: 

Asturia Clubhouse,  

14575 Promenade Parkway 

Odessa, FL 33556 

Note:  The Advanced Meeting Package is a working document and thus all materials are 

considered DRAFTS prior to presentation and Board acceptance, approval or adoption. 



 
Community Development District 

c/o Vesta District Services 

250 International Parkway, Suite 208 

Lake Mary, FL  32746 

321-263-0132 

  

 

 
 

Board of Supervisors  

Asturia Community Development District 
 
Dear Board Members, 

 

The Regular Meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Asturia Community Development District is 

scheduled for Tuesday, January 30, 2024, at 6:00 p.m. at the Asturia Clubhouse, 14575 

Promenade Parkway Odessa, FL 33556. 

 

An advanced copy of the agenda for the meeting is attached along with associated documentation for 

your review and consideration.  Any additional support material will be distributed at the meeting. 

 

Should you have any questions regarding the agenda, please contact me at (321) 263-0132 X-285 or 
tdobson@vestapropertyservices.com. We look forward to seeing you at the meeting. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

Tish Dobson 
Tish Dobson 
District Manager 
 
 
 
 
Cc: Attorney  

Engineer 
District Records 

 



Page 1 of 2 
 

DRAFT – Revised 1/29/2024 Denotes Return to Agenda: 

ASTURIA COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

Meeting Date: Tuesday, January 30, 2024 Click Here to Join the Meeting Online 

Time: 6:00 p.m. Dial-in Number: 1-904-348-0776 

Location: Asturia Clubhouse Meeting ID: 862 156 243# 

 14575 Promenade Parkway  (Mute/Unmute: *6) 

 Odessa, FL  33556   

Agenda 

The full draft agenda packet will be posted to the CDD website when it becomes available,  

or it may be requested by contacting sconley@vestapropertyservices.com 

I. Call to Order  

II. Pledge of Allegiance  

III. Audience Comments (Limited to 3 Minutes per Individual for Agenda Items)    

IV. RFQ – Legal Services  

A. Discussion on Amended Response to Request for Qualifications Legal 

Services from Kass Shuler, PA 

Exhibit 1 

V. Staff Reports  

A. Landscape & Irrigation  

1. Consideration of RedTree Proposal for Asturian Parkway Center 

Island End Cap Planting at Promenade Parkway - $1,750.00 

Exhibit 2 

2. Consideration of RedTree Proposal for Additional Mulch (50 yd3) - 

$2,750.00 

Exhibit 3 

B. Aquatic Services Exhibit 4 

C. District Engineer  

D. District Counsel  

E. Land Use Counsel  

F. District Manager & Field Operations  

1. January Exhibit 5 

VI. Consent Agenda  

A. Consideration and Approval of the Minutes of the Board of Supervisors 

Regular Meeting Held December 19, 2023 

Exhibit 6  

B. Consideration and Acceptance of the December 2023 Unaudited Financial 

Statements 

Exhibit 7  

C. Consideration and Acceptance of the Operation and Maintenance 

Expenditures for December 2023 

Exhibit 8  

l



ASTURIA January 30, 2024 Agenda 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT Page 2 of 2 

DRAFT – Revised 1/29/2024 Denotes Return to Agenda: 

VI. Consent Agenda (Continued)

D. Acceptance of LLS Arbitrage Report for Bond Series 2014A-1 & 2014A-2

Indicating No Cumulative Rebatable Arbitrage Liability as of December 18,

2023.

Exhibit 9 

VII. Business Items

A. Consideration of RedTree Landscape Systems Maintenance Agreement

Second Renewal

Exhibit 10 

B. Consideration of Clubhouse Parking Lot Striping Proposals Exhibit 11 

1. Asphalt & Concrete Parking Lot Maintenance - $1,057.00

2. Romaner Graphics - $1,400.00

C. Consideration of Engaging LLS Tax Solutions for 2024 and 2025 Arbitrage

Reporting Services for Bond Series 2014A-1 & 2014A-2

Exhibit 12 

D. Consideration of FitRev Proposal to Re-Upholster Fitness Bench Pad -

$260.00

Exhibit 13 

VIII. Audience Comments (Limited to 3 Minutes per Individual for Non-Agenda Items)

IX. Supervisors’ Requests

X. Action Items Summary

XI. Next Regular Meeting Agenda Items

XII. Next Workshop Agenda Items

XIII. Next Meeting Quorum Check

MEETING 

February 27, 2024 

6:00 PM 

WORKSHOP 

March 12, 2024 

6:00 PM 

Supervisor 

Attending 

In 

Person 

Virtually Not In 

Person 
Virtually Not 

Jon Tietz 

Glen Penning 

Jacques Darius 

Marie Pearson 

Susan Coppa 

XIII. Adjournment

l



 

 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 1  

l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



 

 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 2 

  

l



 

 
The New Standard in Landscape Maintenance 

1.888.RED.TREE 
www.redtreelandscapesystems.com 

 

5532 Auld Lane, Holiday FL 34690 

 

 

January 21, 2024 
Landscape Enhancement Proposal  

 For 
Asturia CDD 

Tish L. Dobson 
tdobson@vestapropertyservices.com 

 

 

 
• Remove flowers and prep area for new planting to include 4 yards of Planting Mix 

• Install 15 Jack Frost Ligustrum 3gal 

• Install 44 Blue My Mind 1gal  

• Includes all materials, labor, hauling and dump fees  
 

Total: $1,750.00 
 
 
Authorized By:                                                                                                                                Date: 
 

 
Proposal submitted by Kevin Smith – Senior Landscape Designer / Advisor 

  ksmith@redtreelandscape.systems / Cell phone: (727) 426.3679  

l

mailto:tdobson@vestapropertyservices.com
mailto:ksmith@redtreelandscape.systems


 

 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 3 

  

l



 

 

 

 

 

The New Standard in Landscape Maintenance 

1.888.RED.TREE 
www.redtreelandscapesystems.com 

 

5532 Auld Lane, Holiday FL 34690 
 

Mulch Installation Proposal 
FOR 

Asturia CDD 
 

Attention: Tish Dobson, District Manager 
 

 
January 26, 2024 

Scope of Work 
 

 
Extra mulch to complete mulching the entire property. 

    
    

 

• Install (50) cubic yards of Pine Bark Mulch to complete the mulching. 

• Includes all materials and labor. 

 
 

PRICE: $2,750.00 

 
___________________________________   ________/________/________ 

Authorized Signature to Proceed              Date of Authorization 
 
 
 

Proposal submitted by John Burkett - Client Care Specialist 
jburkett@redtreelandscape.systems / Cell phone: (727) 267-2059   

l

mailto:jburkett@redtreelandscape.systems


 

 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 4 

  

l



l



 

 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 5  

l



FIELD OPERATIONS &
DISTRICT MANGER’S REPORT

1

Aquatics

Ponds: The ponds are in excellent shape except for a small algae bloom in the Trails Edge 
Pond. The runoff due to the recent rain events, along with warmer temperatures, may be the 
factors causing the alga bloom. The water levels are still improving which was greatly needed. 
Blue Water Aquatics is aggressively pushing the hog population off property. 

l



FIELD OPERATIONS &
DISTRICT MANGER’S REPORT

2

Landscape & Irrigation Maintenance

Turf: Currently, the turf is looking rough. Between broadleaf weeds, ants, and the dormant season, 
the turf is not at its best. There are several areas of turf that need to be replaced, even if the broadleaf
weeds are eliminated.

l



FIELD OPERATIONS &
DISTRICT MANGER’S REPORT

3

Hedge Lines: Most of the hedges are loving life right now. A few areas at the clubhouse need to 
be replaced. 
Bed Maintenance: For the most part, the detail crew has the weeds in the beds under control and 
with the addition of the mulch, the beds look well maintained. 

l



FIELD OPERATIONS &
DISTRICT MANGER’S REPORT

4

Bed Maintenance Continued: Soft and hard edging in the common areas is at spec and the 
pruning of the hedges is right on the mark with the height and shape. Recommend mechanical 
removal of weeds when they begin to emerge in the beds. 

l



FIELD OPERATIONS &
DISTRICT MANGER’S REPORT

Observations

                                                                                     

    

                                                                                                                                                                                  5

Additional Observations

Irrigation Breaks: Additional breaks were reported at the time of this report. 
Dog Stations: Several dispensers need a few new bag hangers. A temporary repair is in place. 
Streetlight Outages: Multiple streetlights were reported to Duke Energy for repair. 

Trees: The Crapes at the clubhouse are still in decent shape, but there are several other trees in the common areas that 
need to have the moss removed as soon as possible. 
Annuals: Wow!! The annuals are stunning!! 
Algae: A small bloom in the Trails Edge Pond, but Blue Water Aquatics has addressed the issue. 
Mulch: The addition of the new mulch was much needed; however, the estimated cubic yardage fell short of completing all
the beds. RedTree will submit an additional proposal for the Board’s consideration. 

l



FIELD OPERATIONS &
DISTRICT MANGER’S REPORT

District Manager Report

Recap 

Dog Stations and Porter Services:
Services by Office Pride is ongoing with the anticipation of transitioning the responsibilities over to
clubhouse staff once both employees are settled into their new roles.

East Monument and Portico Construction Damage:
To date, neither RIPA nor Hines have followed up regarding the construction damage.
Recommend moving forward with the repairs and perusing legal action.

Fitness Center Equipment:
The residents are genuinely enjoying the new additions to the Fitness Center. The replacement 15 
lb. and 35 lb. weights are on order, with an anticipated delivery date of Monday, January 29th. An
update to follow on the 75 lb. weights. 

Landscape Concerns: 
Reported several irrigation breaks throughout the month of January.
Broadleaf weeds in the turf are still ongoing and may need to be treated more aggressively. 
Requested a log of service dates for the month of January due to concerns of services not being
completed.

Room Rentals:
Scheduled multiple room rentals from January thru June. 

Site Visits:
12/21, 12/23, 12/27, 12/30, 1/1, 1/6, 1/8, 1/10, 1/14, 1/16, 1/18, 1/21, 1/23, 1/24. 1/25. 

Staffing:
The new part-time maintenance employee, Evan, is diving right into the position and is eager to 
accept additional responsibilities.
Darneese White accepted the offer to fill the full-time maintenance position on January 23rd. Once 
she completes the new hire onboarding process, she will be added to the schedule at 35-40 hours
per week.

l



 

 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 6 

  

l



  

MINUTES OF MEETING 1 

ASTURIA 2 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 3 

 The Regular Meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Asturia Community Development 4 

District was held on Tuesday, December 19, 2023 at 6:00 p.m. at Asturia Clubhouse, 14575 5 

Promenade Parkway, Odessa, FL  33556.  The actions taken are summarized as follows: 6 

FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS: Roll Call 7 

Ms. Dobson called the meeting to order and conducted roll call. 8 

Present and constituting a quorum were:  9 

Glenn Penning Board Supervisor, Chairman 10 

Jacques Darius Board Supervisor, Vice Chairman 11 

Jonathan Tietz (via phone) Board Supervisor, Assistant Secretary 12 

Marie Pearson Board Supervisor, Assistant Secretary 13 

Susan Coppa    Board Supervisor, Assistant Secretary 14 

Also present were: 15 

Tish Dobson District Manager, Vesta District Services 16 

Lauren Gentry (via phone) Kilinski Van Wyk 17 

John Burkett RedTree Landscape 18 

Chris Thompson Blue Water Aquatics 19 

Scott Smith Vice President District Services, Vesta  20 

John Markunas Vesta 21 

Denise Greco  22 

John Wolf 23 

Shelley Penning  24 

SECOND ORDER OF BUSINESS: Pledge of Allegiance 25 

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS: Audience Comments – Agenda Items (Limited to 26 

3 minutes per individual for agenda items) 27 

Ms. Greco expressed her appreciation to the Board. 28 

FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS: Exhibit 1:  District Counsel Legal Services 29 

Presentation 30 

A. Consideration of DSK Law Legal Services RFP Response 31 

A representative of DSK was not present.  Ms. Dobson provided information on 32 

DSK.  Supervisors were asked to submit questions for DSK to Ms. Dobson.   33 

B. Acknowledgment of Kilinski Van Wyk Legal Services RFP Response 34 

Ms. Gentry addressed the Board regarding the RFP response. Ms. Gentry was 35 

thanked for her service to the District.   36 

A draft legal services agreement will be presented at the January meeting, and DSK 37 

will assist with a smooth transition. 38 

FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS: Vendor Reports 39 

l



Asturia CDD December 19, 2023 

Regular Meeting Page 2 of 6 

 

Item 5. B. Aquatic Services Report was discussed first. 40 

A. Landscape & Irrigation 41 

Mr. Burkett presented the landscape and irrigation report.  The condition of the 42 

clubhouse turf, impacted by high foot traffic, was discussed.  This will be a spring 43 

project.  Irrigation and water supply issues, annuals, landscape design and future 44 

planting enhancements were also discussed, with a request for proposals to be 45 

provided ahead of the budget discussion. 46 

B. Exhibit 2:  Aquatic Services 47 

This item was addressed out of order prior to the Landscape & Irrigation Report. 48 

Mr. Thompson presented the aquatics report and explained the use and benefits of 49 

the phosphate meter Blue Water Aquatics had acquired.  The Board was notified 50 

that baiting for the hogs had started. 51 

C. District Engineer 52 

Mr. Penning shared that Lighthouse Engineering had some alternate ideas for the 53 

Portico Street extension that might bring some agreement with the developer and 54 

County.  He expects them to share their insights at the January meeting on the non-55 

substantial change request and a strategy for the District.  The Board had not 56 

authorized any research by the District Engineer on the non-substantial change, and 57 

should not be invoiced.  Expectations were conveyed to the District Engineer 58 

regarding work requests and invoicing. 59 

Discussion moved to Land Use Counsel Report. 60 

D. District Counsel 61 

Ms. Gentry discussed her research on the statute of limitations that could potentially 62 

apply to the Halff invoice.  Claims that are based on a written contract are subject 63 

to a five-year statute of limitations.  Claims based on obligations not in a written 64 

contract are subject to a four-year statute of limitations. 65 

E. Land Use Counsel 66 

This item was discussed out of order, after District Engineer Report, prior to 67 

District Counsel’s Report. 68 

Ms. Dobson will forward an email from Land Use Counsel to the Board.  Lantower 69 

has secured local counsel to review the cost-share agreement request.  Mr. Faulkner 70 

will contact Lantower and Pasco County Counsel requesting an update.  Ms. 71 

Dobson will forward the name of Lantower’s Counsel (Kami Corbett of Hill, Ward, 72 

and Henderson, P.A.) to the Supervisors.  It was noted that the cost of development 73 

of the 3.22 acres was not included in the cost-share agreement matrix.  The District 74 

may consider adding this cost, and bond monies associated with the greenspace 75 

acreage; options were discussed by the Board. 76 

 77 

l



Asturia CDD December 19, 2023 

Regular Meeting Page 3 of 6 

 

F. District Manager & Field Operations 78 

1. Exhibit 3:  December 79 

Ms. Dobson presented the December report.  She provided a staffing update 80 

and notified the Board that Office Pride will repair some of the dog stations.  81 

Resumes for the full-time position will be forwarded to the Board for 82 

review.  Staff shirts and rain gear were discussed.   83 

It was noted that the fitness center is being used more frequently around 84 

holidays and a request was made for equipment cleaning solution to be 85 

monitored as it appears to run low on a regular basis.  Ms. Dobson will ask 86 

Office Pride to check the supplies when the check the trash cans.   87 

Ms. Dobson asked the Board for their input on the cleaning service since 88 

the 30-day deficiency notice was issued.  A discussion followed regarding 89 

the cleaning service and an annual interior/exterior window cleaning 90 

proposal for $500 from Cleaning Commandos. 91 

On a MOTION by Ms. Pearson, SECONDED by Ms. Coppa, WITH ALL IN FAVOR, the Board 92 

approved the termination of the cleaning agreement with Electro Sanitation and authorized staff to 93 

send the thirty-day notice, for Asturia Community Development District. 94 

On a MOTION by Ms. Coppa, SECONDED by Ms. Pearson, WITH ALL IN FAVOR, the Board 95 

approved Cleaning Commandos to provide cleaning services at a rate of $300.00 per week, to 96 

begin after the Electro Sanitation agreement terminates, for Asturia Community Development 97 

District. 98 

On a MOTION by Mr. Penning, SECONDED by Ms. Coppa, WITH ALL IN FAVOR, the Board 99 

approved Cleaning Commandos annual proposal to clean interior and exterior, top and bottom 100 

windows, in the amount of $500.00, for Asturia Community Development District. 101 

Mr. Penning requested the current cleaning agreement in order to revise the 102 

language in the scope of work before being forwarded to Ms. Gentry. 103 

A discussion pertaining to Business Item C:  Room Rental Oversight 104 

occurred at this point in the meeting. 105 

A discussion followed on security cameras.  Mr. Tietz will contact 106 

Complete IT and Mr. Penning will contact DCSI for proposals for video 107 

monitoring and cameras.  Mr. Penning will also check on the system 108 

Reolink offers for a comparison. 109 

SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS: Consent Agenda 110 

A. Exhibit 4:  Consideration and Approval of the Minutes of the Board of Supervisors 111 

Regular Meeting Held November 28, 2023 112 

B. Exhibit 5:  Consideration and Acceptance of the November 2023 Unaudited 113 

Financial Statements 114 

l



Asturia CDD December 19, 2023 

Regular Meeting Page 4 of 6 

 

C. Exhibit 6:  Consideration and Acceptance of the Operation and Maintenance 115 

Expenditures for November 2023 116 

On a MOTION by Mr. Darius, SECONDED by Ms. Pearson, WITH ALL IN FAVOR, the Board 117 

approved the Consent Agenda – Items A-C as presented, for Asturia Community Development 118 

District. 119 

SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS: Business Items 120 

A. Exhibit 7:  Consideration of RedTree Landscape Maintenance Agreement Renewal 121 

Ms. Dobson recommended the Board consider any deficiencies or non-compliance 122 

of current contractual services so they can be discussed at the January meeting with 123 

Mr. Lucadano.  A discussion followed on annuals. 124 

B. Exhibit 8:  Consideration of Resolution 2024-03, Disposal of Surplus Equipment 125 

Policy 126 

A new rower, recumbent bike and weights have been ordered.  The Board 127 

acknowledged the $500 donation from a resident for fitness equipment.  The Board 128 

discussed a silent auction. 129 

On a MOTION by Mr. Penning, SECONDED by Ms. Pearson, WITH ALL IN FAVOR, the Board 130 

adopted Resolution 2024-03, Disposal of Surplus Equipment Policy, for Asturia Community 131 

Development District. 132 

The Board authorized Ms. Dobson to proceed with a silent auction for the surplus 133 

equipment listed in the resolution. 134 

C. Discussion on Room Rental Oversight 135 

This item was discussed under the District Manager and Field Operations report.  136 

Consensus was to add this item to the February agenda once staffing is confirmed 137 

and to ensure a procedure is in place prior to the warmer weather.  The Board 138 

discussed monitoring and rental fees off-setting wear and damage. 139 

EIGHTH ORDER OF BUSINESS: Audience Comments – New Business (Limited to 140 

3 minutes per individual for non-agenda items) 141 

Mr. Smith announced the plan for Ms. Dobson to transition into a new role for Vesta and 142 

introduced Mr. Markunas.   143 

NINTH ORDER OF BUSINESS: Supervisor Requests (Includes Next Meeting 144 

Agenda Item Requests) 145 

Mr. Darius asked about running or an open seat. 146 

Mr. Penning will prove a list of tasks for staff.  Ms. Dobson stated this will be converted 147 

into a checklist for staff, in addition to posting staffed hours. 148 

Ms. Pearson reiterated the need for Supervisors to evaluate the resumes of the full-time 149 

position applicants and provide Ms. Dobson with feedback so interviews can be 150 

scheduled. 151 

l



Asturia CDD December 19, 2023 

Regular Meeting Page 5 of 6 

 

TENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS: Action Items Summary 152 

Supervisors 153 

• Submit questions for District Counsel to District Manager: None received. 154 

Mr. Tietz 155 

• Contact Complete IT for camera/monitoring proposal 156 

Mr. Penning 157 

• Contact DCSI for camera/monitoring proposal and provide comparison on 158 

Reolink equipment/service 159 

District Counsel 160 

• Draft new District Counsel agreement 161 

District Manager 162 

• Send the Ethics link to the Board: Included with the DM Notes.  163 

• Send email from Hunter to the Board: Completed.  164 

• Send the Board Lantower’s new counsel’s name: Kami Corbett of Hill, 165 

Ward, and Henderson, P.A.: Included with the DM Notes.  166 

• Send resumes to Board: Completed.  167 

• Provide Board with an on cleaning contract: Update included with the DM 168 

Notes.  169 

RedTree 170 

• Submit proposal to remove annuals at the corner of Asturian / Promenade 171 

Parkway and replace as a mirror image of the bed at Hwy. 54 and Asturian 172 

Parkway. 173 

ELEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS: Next Regular Meeting Agenda Items 174 

January 175 

1. Landscape Agreement Renewal 176 

February 177 

2. Room Rental Oversight 178 

3. Cameras 179 

TWELFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS: Next Workshop Agenda Items 180 

The February 13, 2024 workshop is canceled. 181 

THIRTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS: Next Meeting Quorum Check 182 

The next Asturia Community Development District meeting is scheduled for 6:00 p.m. on 183 

January 30, 2024, at Asturia Clubhouse, 14575 Promenade Parkway, Odessa, FL  33556. 184 

l



Asturia CDD December 19, 2023 

Regular Meeting Page 6 of 6 

 

All Supervisors confirmed their intent to attend the meeting in person. 185 

FOURTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS: Adjournment 186 

On a MOTION by Mr. Penning, SECONDED by Ms. Pearson, WITH ALL IN FAVOR, the Board 187 

adjourned the meeting at 8:11 p.m., for Asturia Community Development District. 188 

*Each person who decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter 189 

considered at the meeting is advised that person may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the 190 

proceedings is made, including the testimony and evidence upon which such appeal is to be based. 191 

Meeting minutes were approved at a meeting by vote of the Board of Supervisors at a publicly 192 

noticed meeting held on January 30, 2024. 193 

__________________________________ __________________________________ 194 

  □ Tish Dobson, Secretary   □ Glenn Penning, Chair 195 

  □________________________, Assistant Secretary   □ Jacques Darius, Vice Chair 196 

 197 

l



 

 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 7 

  

l



Asturia 
Community Development District

Financial Statements
(Unaudited)

December 31, 2023

l



Capital
General Reserve DS Series DS Series Projects

Fund Fund 2014 2016 Series 2016 Total
Assets:

Cash 2,324,178$              -$                                  -                            -                                -$                    2,324,178$            
Money Market 76,046                      -                                    -                            -                                -                      76,046                   
Investments: -                      
     Revenue Fund -                                -                                    98,338                  9,760                       -                      108,098                 
     Principal -                                -                                    -                            0                               -                      0                             
     Interest Fund -                                -                                    30                         7                               -                      37                           
     Reserve -                                -                                    290,475               73,626                     -                      364,101                 
     Prepayment -                                -                                    1                           16                             -                      17                           
     Sinking Fund -                                -                                    61                         1                               -                      62                           
     Acquisition & Construction -                                -                                    -                            -                                4,364              4,364                     
Deposits (Utility) 6,446                        -                                    -                            -                                -                      6,446                     
Prepaid Expenses 120                           -                                    -                            -                                -                      120                         
Accounts Receivable -                                -                                    -                            -                                -                      -                              
Assessment Receivable - On Roll 32,827                      6,431                            18,043                  4,538                       -                      61,839                   
Assessment Receivable - On Roll Excess -                                -                                    -                            -                                -                      -                              
Assessment Receivable - Prior Year -                                -                                    -                            -                                -                      -                              
Due From Other Funds -                                238,893                       543,131               136,606                   -                      918,630                 
Total Assets 2,439,618$              245,324$                     950,078               224,555                   4,364$           3,863,938$           

Liabilities:

Accounts Payable 66,470$                   -$                                  -$                          -$                              -$                    66,470$                 
Sales Tax Payable 4                                -                                    -                            -                                -                      4                             
Accrued Expenses 11,723                      -                                    -                            -                                -                      11,723                   
Due to Other Funds 918,630                   -                                    -                            -                                -                      918,630                 
Due to General Fund -                                    -                            -                                -                      -                              
Due to Developer -                                    -                            -                                -                      -                              
Deferred Revenue On Roll 32,827                      6,431                            18,043                  4,538                       -                      61,839                   
Rental Deposits 1,500                        -                                    -                            -                                -                      1,500                     

Fund Balance:

Nonspendable
      Prepaids and Deposits 6,566                        -                                    -                            -                                -                      6,566                     
Restricted For: -                                    -                            -                                -                      -                              
     Debt Service -                                    932,034               220,017                   -                      1,152,051              
     Capital Projects -                                    -                            -                                4,364              8,728                     
Unassigned 1,401,897                238,893                       -                            -                                -                      1,636,427              

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance 2,439,618$              245,324$                     950,078               224,555                   4,364$           3,863,938$           

Asturia CDD
Balance Sheet

December 31, 2023

l



FY2023
Adopted Current Actual Variance % of
Budget Month Year-to-Date +/(-) Budget

Revenue

     Special Assessments - Tax Collector 1,020,959$     861,037           988,132             (32,827)$              96.78%
     Special Assessments - Discounts -                       -                        -                          -                             0.00%
     Other Miscellaneous Revenues 15,000            439                  2,047                 (12,954)                 13.64%
     Interest -                       491                  1,212                 1,212                    0.00%
     Room Rentals 4,000               798                  1,722                 (2,278)                   43.04%
     Event Fees 2,500               -                        -                          (2,500)                   0.00%
     Access Cards 200                  30                     180                     (20)                        89.99%
Total Revenues 1,042,659       862,794           993,293             (49,366)                95.27%

Expenditures

  Administrative
     Payroll - Board of Supervisors 15,000            1,000               3,000                 (12,000)                 20.00%
     FICA Taxes 1,377               83                     248                     (1,130)                   17.97%
     Profsrv - Arbitrage Rebate 1,300               -                        -                          (1,300)                   0.00%
     Profsrv - Engineering 20,000            -                        2,355                 (17,645)                 11.78%
     Profsrv - Legal Services - General 30,000            -                        3,100                 (26,900)                 10.33%
     Profsrv - Legal Services - Land Use 20,000            -                        71                       (19,929)                 0.35%
     Profsrv - Legal Services - Defect 10,000            -                        -                          (10,000)                 0.00%
     Profsrv - Management Consulting 60,000            5,000               15,000               (45,000)                 25.00%
     Profsrv - Trustee Fees 8,500               -                        500                     (8,000)                   5.88%
     Auditing Services 3,600               -                        -                          (3,600)                   0.00%
     Website Hosting/Email Services 5,500               105                  1,851                 (3,649)                   33.66%
     Mailed Notices - Postage 1,000               -                        -                          (1,000)                   0.00%
     Public Officials Insurance 4,103               -                        3,458                 (645)                      84.28%
     Legal Advertising 1,500               -                        223                     (1,277)                   14.88%
     Tax Collector/Property Appraiser Fees 650                  -                        -                          (650)                      0.00%
     Dues, Licenses, Subscriptions 175                  -                        175                     -                             100.00%
 Total Administrative 182,705          6,187               29,980               (152,725)              16.41%

  Utility Services
     Electricity - Streetlights 219,365          12,738             39,572               (179,793)              18.04%
     Utility - Irrigation 5,134               -                          (5,134)                   0.00%
     Utility Services 1,380               -                          (1,380)                   0.00%
     Utility - Recreation Facilities 24,150            -                          (24,150)                 0.00%
  Total Utility Services 250,029          12,738             39,572               (210,457)              15.83%

Asturia CDD
General Fund 

Statement of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
For the Period of October 1, 2023 to December 31, 2023

l



  Garbage/Solid Waste Services
     Garbage - Recreation Facility 1,500               76                     230                     (1,270)                   15.32%
     Solid Waste Assessment 670                  -                        1,250                 580                       186.52%
  Total Garbage/Solid Waste Services 2,170              76                     1,480                 (691)                      68.18%

  Water/Sewer Comb Services
     Utility - Reclaimed Water 40,000            4,692               8,099                 (31,901)                 20.25%
     Utility - Potable Water 15,000            -                        -                          (15,000)                 0.00%
  Total Water/Sewer Comb Services 55,000            4,692               8,099                 (46,901)                14.73%

  Stormwater Control
     Stormwater Assessment 900                  -                        -                          (900)                      0.00%
     Aquatic Maintenance 18,000            890                  2,670                 (15,330)                 14.83%
  Total Stormwater Control 18,900            890                  2,670                 (16,230)                14.13%

  Other Physical Environment
     Insurance - Property 20,605            -                        20,714               109                       100.53%
     Insurance - General Liability 5,000               -                        6,289                 1,289                    125.78%
     R&M - Irrigation 10,000            -                        -                          (10,000)                 0.00%
     Landscape Maintenance - General 142,200          12,975             38,925               (103,275)              27.37%
     Landscape Maintenance - Fertilization 9,600               -                        -                          (9,600)                   0.00%
     Landscape Maintenance - Pest Control 5,100               -                        -                          (5,100)                   0.00%
     Landscape Maintenance - Irrigation 12,000            -                        2,649                 (9,351)                   22.07%
     Landscape Maintenance - Mulch 24,750            -                        -                          (24,750)                 0.00%
     Landscape Maintenance - Annuals 11,340            -                        7,875                 (3,465)                   69.44%
     Landscape Replacement 25,000            -                        -                          (25,000)                 0.00%
     Holiday Lighting & Decorations 3,000               -                        3,020                 20                          100.67%
  Total Other Physical Environment 268,595          12,975             79,472               (189,123)              29.59%

  Road and Street Facilities
     R&M - Sidewalks 10,000            -                        -                          (10,000)                 0.00%
     Roadway - Repair & Maintenance 25,000            -                        -                          (25,000)                 0.00%
     R&M - Pressure Washing 3,000               -                        -                          (3,000)                   0.00%
  Total Road and Street Facilities 38,000            -                        -                          (38,000)                0.00%

  Parks and Recreation - General
     Profsrv - Field Mgmt 70,000            44                     4,356                 (65,644)                 6.22%
     Profsrv - Pool Maintenance 12,600            -                        3,081                 (9,519)                   24.45%
     Profsrv - Wildlife Management Service 2,400               -                        -                          (2,400)                   0.00%
     Contracts - Cleaning Services 16,000            1,500               3,900                 (12,100)                 24.38%
     Contracts - Pest Control 660                  55                     165                     (495)                      25.00%
     Telephone/Fax/Internet Services 3,600               187                  561                     (3,039)                   15.57%
     R&M - Fitness Equipment 4,500               -                        -                          (4,500)                   0.00%
     Amenity Maintenance & Repairs 10,000            102                  691                     (9,309)                   6.91%
     Facility A/C & Heating Maint & Repair 1,500               -                        -                          (1,500)                   0.00%
     Boardwalk and Bridge Maintenance 2,500               -                        -                          (2,500)                   0.00%
     Pool Furniture Repair & Replacement 4,000               -                        -                          (4,000)                   0.00%

l



     Security System Monitoring & Maint 12,000            -                        -                          (12,000)                 0.00%
     Dog Park Maintenance 500                  -                        -                          (500)                      0.00%
     Dog Park Mulching 2,000               -                        -                          (2,000)                   0.00%
     Office Supplies 600                  -                        -                          (600)                      0.00%
     Clubhouse - Facility Janitorial Supplies 3,600               -                        246                     (3,354)                   6.82%
     Garbage & Dog Waste Station Supplies 3,000               -                        640                     (2,360)                   21.33%
     Pool Permits 300                  -                        -                          (300)                      0.00%
  Total Parks and Recreation - General 149,760          1,888               13,639               (136,121)              9.11%

  Special Events
     Special Events 2,500               -                        -                          (2,500)                   0.00%
   Total Special Events 2,500              -                        -                          (2,500)                   0.00%

  Contingency
     Misc - Contingency 25,000            6,837               17,051               (7,949)                   68.21%
  Total Contingency 25,000            6,837               17,051               (7,949)                   68.21%

  Reserves
     Reserve - Roads 50,000            -                        -                          (50,000)                 0.00%
 Total Reserves 50,000            -                        -                          (50,000)                0.00%

Total Expenditures 1,042,659       46,282             191,963             (850,696)              18.41%

Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures -                       816,512           801,329             801,329                0.00%

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
     Transfer In -                       -                        -                          -                             0.00%
     Transfer Out -                       -                        -                          -                             0.00%
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) -                       -                        -                          -                             0.00%

Net Change in Fund Balance 801,329             

Fund Balance - Beginning 607,135             

Fund Balance - Ending 1,408,464         

l



FY2023
Adopted Current Actual Variance % of
Budget Month Year-to-Date +/(-) Budget

Revenue

     Special Assessments - Tax Collector 200,000$                            168,672$                          193,569$                       (6,431)$                 96.78%

Total Revenues 200,000                               168,672                            193,569                         (6,431)                    96.78%

Expenditures

Total Expenditures -                                            -                                         -                                       -                              0.00%

Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures 200,000                               168,672                            193,569                         (6,431)                    96.78%

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
     Transfer In -                                            -                                         -                                       -                              0.00%
     Transfer Out -                                            -                                         -                                       -                              0.00%
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) -                                            -                                         -                                       -                              0.00%

Net Change in Fund Balance 193,569                         

Fund Balance - Beginning 45,324                            

Fund Balance - Ending 238,893                         

Statement of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
For the Period of October 1, 2023 to December 31, 2023

l



FY2023
Adopted Actual
Budget Year-to-Date

Revenue

     Special Assessments - On-Roll (Net) 561,174$                                      543,131$                             
     Interest -                                                     6,791                                    
Total Revenues 561,174                                        549,922                               

Expenditures

Interest Expense
     November 1, 2023 202,053                                        202,053                               
     May 1, 2024 197,453                                        -                                            
Principal Retirement
     May 1, 2024 160,000                                        -                                            
Total Expenditures 559,506                                        202,053                               

Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures 1,668                                            347,869                               

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
     Transfer In -                                            
     Transfer Out -                                            
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) -                                            

Net Change in Fund Balance 347,869                               

Fund Balance - Beginning 584,165                               

Fund Balance - Ending 932,034$                             

Asturia CDD
Debt Service - Series 2014

Statement of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
For the Period of October 1, 2023 to December 31, 2023

l



FY2023
Adopted Actual
Budget Year-to-Date

Revenue

     Special Assessments - On-Roll (Net) 141,144$                                      136,606$                             
     Interest 1,514                                    
Total Revenues 141,144                                        138,120                               

Expenditures

Interest Expense
     May 1, 2024 48,499                                          -                                            
     November 1, 2023 47,476                                          48,499                                 
Principal Retirement
     May 1, 2024 45,000                                          -                                            
Total Expenditures 140,975                                        48,499                                 

Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures 169                                               89,621                                 

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
     Transfer In -                                            
     Transfer Out (2,153)                                  
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (2,153)                                  

Net Change in Fund Balance 87,468                                 

Fund Balance - Beginning 132,549                               

Fund Balance - Ending 220,017$                             

Asturia CDD
Debt Service - Series 2016

Statement of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
For the Period of October 1, 2023 to December 31, 2023

l



Actual
Year-to-Date

Revenue

     Interest 44$                                           

Total Revenues 44                                             

Expenditures

     Capital Projects -                                                 

Total Expenditures -                                                 

Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures 44                                             

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
     Transfer In 2,153                                        
     Transfer Out -                                                 
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 2,153                                        

Net Change in Fund Balance 2,197                                        

Fund Balance - Beginning 2,167                                        

Fund Balance - Ending 4,364$                                      

Asturia CDD
Debt Service - Series 2016

Statement of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
For the Period of October 1, 2023 to December 31, 2023

l



Balance per Bank Statement 2,331,005.73$                  

Deposits Outstanding -                                      

Checks Outstanding 6,827.70                            

Adjusted Bank Balance 2,324,178.03$                  

Beginning Bank Balance per Books 754,183.33$                      

Cash Receipts & Creditrs 1,623,510.80                     

Cash Disbursements 53,516.10                          

Balance per Books 2,324,178.03$                  

Asturia CDD
Cash Reconciliation - General Fund

December 31, 2023

l



Date Number Name Memo Deposits Payments Balance
9/30/2023 Balance forward 658,525.21      

10/01/2023 1053 Egis Insurance Advisors Policy #100123685 10/1/23 - 10/01/24 29,611.00 628,914.21

10/02/2023 ACH100223 Frontier  Service 9/7-10/6 69.98 628,844.23

10/02/2023 100145 RedTree Landscape Systems, LLC Invoice: 14816 (Reference: Irrigation Repair 08.08.23.  ) 1,132.25 627,711.98

10/02/2023 100146 Romaner Graphics Invoice: 21878 (Reference: ReInstall "Curve" Sign at Promenade & Portico.  ) 120.00 627,591.98

10/06/2023 1006ACH1 ADP, Inc. Payroll Processing Fees 110.83 627,481.15

10/06/2023 1054 Tampa Holiday Lighting 2023 Holiday Lighting 3,020.00 624,461.15

10/10/2023 1055 Site Masters of Florida, LLC Fenland / Alimara Erosion Repairs Final 3,600.00 620,861.15

10/10/2023 100147 Vesta District Services Invoice: 413495 (Reference: Monthly DM Services.  ) 5,000.00 615,861.15

10/10/2023 100148 Complete IT Corp Invoice: B688CC27-0008 (Reference: Monthly Hosted Phone Seat.  ) 41.04 615,820.11

10/10/2023 100149 RedTree Landscape Systems, LLC Invoice: 14911 (Reference: Monthly Maintenance.  ) 12,975.00 602,845.11

10/10/2023 100150 DCSI, Inc. Invoice: 31234 (Reference: Service Call 09.15.23.  ) 125.00 602,720.11

10/10/2023 100151 Innersync Studio Invoice: 21716 (Reference: Annual Website/PDF Service, Oct 2023-Sep 2024.  ) 1,537.50 601,182.61

10/11/2023 100152 Best Termite and Pest Control, Inc. Invoice: 1231143 (Reference: Monthly Pest Control Service.  ) 55.00 601,127.61

10/11/2023 100153 Electro Sanitation Services Invoice: INV-000014 (Reference: Monthly Cleaning Service - Sep 2023.  )  Invoice: INV-000015 (Re... 1,287.85 599,839.76

10/11/2023 100154 Suncoast Pool Service Invoice: 9691 (Reference: Swimming Pool Svc - Oct 2023.  ) 1,027.00 598,812.76

10/11/2023 100155 Blue Water Aquatics, Inc. Invoice: 30700 (Reference: Aquatic Services - Sep 2023.  ) 890.00 597,922.76

10/11/2023 100156 RedTree Landscape Systems, LLC Invoice: 15038 (Reference: Irrigation Repair 08.19.23.  )  Invoice: 15041 (Reference: Irrigation... 964.25 596,958.51

10/11/2023 100157 Coastal Waste & Recycling, Inc. Invoice: SW0000412508 (Reference: Monthly Waste P/U - Oct 2023.  ) 77.08 596,881.43

10/13/2023 104 Glen Penning P/R BOS Meeting 9/26/23 184.70 596,696.73

10/13/2023 1013ACH1 Jean-Jacques Darius P/R BOS Meeting 9/26/23 184.70 596,512.03

10/13/2023 1013ACH2 Jonathan Tietz P/R BOS Meeting 9/26/23 184.70 596,327.33

10/13/2023 103 Marie Pearson P/R BOS Meeting 9/26/23 184.70 596,142.63

10/13/2023 1013ACH3 Ryan Grillo PR  9/23/23 - 10/06/23 518.48 595,624.15

10/13/2023 102 Susan Coppa P/R BOS Meeting 9/26/23 160.70 595,463.45

10/13/2023 1013ACH4 ADP, Inc. Workers Comp 68.93 595,394.52

10/13/2023 1013ACH5 ADP, Inc. Payroll Tax 297.78 595,096.74

10/16/2023 1ACH101623 Duke Energy Payment Processing 000 Promenade PKY Lite 8/25- 9/22 296.86 594,799.88

10/16/2023 2ACH101623 Duke Energy Payment Processing 000 Promenade PKY Lite 08/25-9/22 100.24 594,699.64

10/16/2023 1057 Stephen Brock Room Rental Refund 250.00 594,449.64

10/18/2023 1ACH101823 Duke Energy Payment Processing 14807 Renaissance Ave Irrigation 8/26- 9/25 30.79 594,418.85

10/18/2023 3ACH101823 Duke Energy Payment Processing 14721 State Road 54 Lite 08/25-09/22 5,621.44 588,797.41

10/18/2023 2ACH101823 Duke Energy Payment Processing 14826 Renaissance Ave Irrigation 8/26 -9/25 30.79 588,766.62

10/18/2023 4ACH101823 Duke Energy Payment Processing 15381 Aviles PKWY Pump Irrigation 8/26- 9/25 30.79 588,735.83

10/18/2023 5ACH101823 Duke Energy Payment Processing 15246 Caravan Ave Irrigation 8/26- 9/25 30.79 588,705.04

10/18/2023 7ACH101823 Duke Energy Payment Processing 2781 Long Bow Way  Irrigation 8/26- 9/25 30.79 588,674.25

10/18/2023 6ACH101823 Duke Energy Payment Processing 0000 Aviles PKY Lite 8/26-9/22 2,034.30 586,639.95

10/18/2023 8ACH101823 Duke Energy Payment Processing 0000 Aviles PKY Lite PH2 A&B SL 8/25-9/22 2,599.55 584,040.40

10/18/2023 9ACH101823 Duke Energy Payment Processing 15301 Aviles PKWY Pump Irrigation 8/26-9/25 30.79 584,009.61

10/18/2023 10ACH01823 Duke Energy Payment Processing 14700 Trails Edge Blvd Irrigation 8/26- 9/25 30.79 583,978.82

Asturia CDD
Check Register

FY24

l



10/18/2023 11ACH101823 Duke Energy Payment Processing 15233 Renaissance Ave Irrigation 8/25-9/25 30.79 583,948.03

10/18/2023 12ACH101823 Duke Energy Payment Processing 14575 Promenade PKWY Amenity Center 08/26- 9/25 1,604.86 582,343.17

10/18/2023 13ACH101823 Duke Energy Payment Processing 14575 Promenade PKY Pool 8/26- 9/25 1,003.27 581,339.90

10/18/2023 14ACH101823 Duke Energy Payment Processing 2995 Long Bow Way Irrigation 8/26- 9/25 30.79 581,309.11

10/18/2023 15ACH101823 Duke Energy Payment Processing 14731 State Road 54 8/26- 9/25 32.18 581,276.93

10/18/2023 16ACH101823 Duke Energy Payment Processing 15121 Aviles PKWY Pump Irrigatio 8/26- 9/25 30.79 581,246.14

10/18/2023 17ACH101823 Duke Energy Payment Processing 15138 Caravan Ave Irrigation 8/26- 9/25 30.79 581,215.35

10/20/2023 1ACH102023 Pasco County Utilities 15050 Caravan Ave 8/18- 9/19 27.00 581,188.35

10/20/2023 2ACH102023 Pasco County Utilities 14915 Aviles Parkway 8/18- 9/19 56.25 581,132.10

10/20/2023 3ACH102023 Pasco County Utilities 14859 Caravan Ave 8/18- 9/19 16.50 581,115.60

10/20/2023 4ACH102023 Pasco County Utilities 14450 Promenade Parkway 8/19- 9/18 153.00 580,962.60

10/20/2023 5ACH102023 Pasco County Utilities 14700 Trails Edge Blvd 8/18-9/19 84.00 580,878.60

10/20/2023 6ACH102023 Pasco County Utilities 2830 Long Bow Way 8/18- 9/19 34.50 580,844.10

10/20/2023 7ACH102023 Pasco County Utilities 14400 Trails Edge Blvd 08/18-9/19/23 12.00 580,832.10

10/20/2023 8ACH102023 Pasco County Utilities 0 Promenade Parkway 8/18- 9/19 117.00 580,715.10

10/20/2023 9ACH102023 Pasco County Utilities 2995 Long Bow Wa 8/19- 9/18 9.00 580,706.10

10/20/2023 10ACH102023 Pasco County Utilities 15381 Aviles Parkway 8/19- 9/18 9.00 580,697.10

10/20/2023 11ACH102023 Pasco County Utilities 15233 renaissance Ave 8/19- 9/18 2.25 580,694.85

10/20/2023 12ACH102023 Pasco County Utilities 15121 Aviles parkway 8/19- 9/18 2.25 580,692.60

10/20/2023 13ACH100923 Pasco County Utilities 15246 Caravan Ave 8/19- 9/18 16.50 580,676.10

10/20/2023 14ACH102023 Pasco County Utilities 14577 Promenade parkway 8/18- 9/19 18.00 580,658.10

10/20/2023 15ACH102023 Pasco County Utilities 14575 Promenade Parkway 8/18 -9/18 1,131.10 579,527.00

10/20/2023 16ACH102023 Pasco County Utilities 14502 Promenade Parkway 8/18- 9/19 65.99 579,461.01

10/20/2023 EFT102023 Florida Dept. of Revenue Sales Tax Filing - Sep 2023 101.01 579,360.00

10/20/2023 1020ACH1 ADP, Inc. Payroll Processing Fees 119.17 579,240.83

10/24/2023 100158 Business Observer Invoice: 23-01699P (Reference: Legal Advertising.  ) 89.69 579,151.14

10/24/2023 100159 KILINSKI VAN WYK, PLLC Invoice: 7583 (Reference: General Matters - Sep 2023.  ) 1,326.38 577,824.76

10/25/2023 ACH102523 Duke Energy Payment Processing 15165 State Rd 54 Monument 8/26- 9/26 291.73 577,533.03

10/25/2023 Deposit 1,390.00 578,923.03

10/27/2023 1027ACH1 Cory R. Elliott PR  10/7/23 - 10/20/23 629.72 578,293.31

10/27/2023 1027ACH2 Ryan Grillo PR  10/7/23 - 10/20/23 487.60 577,805.71

10/27/2023 1027ACH3 ADP, Inc. Payroll Tax 10/7/23 - 10/20/23 233.11 577,572.60

10/27/2023 1027ACH4 ADP, Inc. Workers Comp 36.70 577,535.90

10/31/2023 ACH103123 Frontier  Service 10/7-11/6 79.98 577,455.92

10/31/2023 Interest 52.37 577,508.29

10/31/2023 1,442.37           82,459.29   577,508.29      
11/02/2023 100160 Romaner Graphics Invoice: 21926 (Reference: Inspection of Exit Signs.  ) 75.00 577,433.29

11/03/2023 1103ACH1 ADP, Inc. Payroll Processing Fees 110.83 577,322.46

11/06/2023 100161 Best Termite and Pest Control, Inc. Invoice: 1236230 (Reference: Pest Control Service 10.25.23.  ) 55.00 577,267.46

11/06/2023 100162 Electro Sanitation Services Invoice: INV-000025 (Reference: Monthly Cleaning Service - Oct 2023.  )  Invoice: INV-000026 (Re... 1,357.73 575,909.73

11/06/2023 100163 FitRev Inc Invoice: 29727 (Reference: Semi Annual Prev Maint.  ) 330.00 575,579.73

11/06/2023 100164 Lopez & Perez Professional Painting Inc. Invoice: 102223-2 (Reference: Prep/Paint Mailbox on Long Bow Way.  )  Invoice: 102223-1 (Referen... 900.00 574,679.73

11/06/2023 Deposit 907.71 575,587.44

11/07/2023 Deposit 107.15 575,694.59

11/07/2023 Deposit 5,383.61 581,078.20

11/08/2023 Deposit 60.00 581,138.20

l



11/09/2023 100165 Complete IT Corp Invoice: 11912 (Reference: Monthly Email Services.  )  Invoice: B688CC27-0009 (Reference: CIT Ho... 211.95 580,926.25

11/09/2023 100166 Suncoast Pool Service Invoice: 9772 (Reference: Swimming Pool Service - Nov 2023.  ) 1,027.00 579,899.25

11/09/2023 100167 RedTree Landscape Systems, LLC Invoice: 15381 (Reference: Irrigation Repairs 10.23.23.  )  Invoice: 15391 (Reference: Irrigatio... 2,530.25 577,369.00

11/09/2023 100168 Coastal Waste & Recycling, Inc. Invoice: SW0000434289 (Reference: Monthly Waste P/U - Nov 2023.  ) 76.77 577,292.23

11/09/2023 100169 Vesta District Services Invoice: 414369 (Reference: Monthly DM Services.  ) 5,000.00 572,292.23

11/09/2023 100170 Lighthouse Engineering Inc. Invoice: 3 (Reference: General Engineering Consulting at Request.  )  Invoice: 2 (Reference: Pub... 2,355.00 569,937.23

11/09/2023 100171 Lopez & Perez Professional Painting Inc. Invoice: 102223-ACDD (Reference: Prep/Paint Entrance Signs.  ) 1,000.00 568,937.23

11/10/2023 1110ACH1TAX ADP, Inc. Payroll Tax 615.51 568,321.72

11/10/2023 1110ACH2WC ADP, Inc. Workers Comp 79.93 568,241.79

11/10/2023 1110ACH1 Cory R. Elliott PR 10/21/23 - 11/03/23 1,229.42 567,012.37

11/10/2023 107 Glen Penning P/R BOS Meeting 10/24/23 184.70 566,827.67

11/10/2023 1110ACH3 Jean-Jacques Darius P/R BOS Meeting 10/24/23 184.70 566,642.97

11/10/2023 1110ACH4 Jonathan Tietz P/R BOS Meeting 10/24/23 184.70 566,458.27

11/10/2023 106 Marie Pearson P/R BOS Meeting 10/24/23 184.70 566,273.57

11/10/2023 1110ACH2 Ryan Grillo PR 10/21/23 - 11/03/23 481.42 565,792.15

11/10/2023 105 Susan Coppa P/R BOS Meeting 10/24/23 160.70 565,631.45

11/14/2023 1058 Egis Insurance Advisors Policy # WC100123685 10.01.23-10.01.24 850.00 564,781.45

11/14/2023 1059 Mike Fasano, Pasco County Tax Collector Parcel ID 26-26-17-0050-00Y00-0000, 2023 Solid Waste Assessment 1,249.67 563,531.78

11/14/2023 Deposit 100,493.53 664,025.31

11/15/2023 1ACH111523 Duke Energy Payment Processing 000 Promenade PKY Lite 09/23-10/24 100.24 663,925.07

11/15/2023 2ACH111523 Duke Energy Payment Processing 000 Promenade PKY Lite 9/23- 10/24 296.86 663,628.21

11/15/2023 1060 FLORIDA DEPT OF ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITFY 23-24 Special District State Fee 175.00 663,453.21

11/16/2023 100172 Blue Water Aquatics, Inc. Invoice: 30812 (Reference: Pond/Waterway Treatment - Oct 2023.  ) 890.00 662,563.21

11/16/2023 100173 Lopez & Perez Professional Painting Inc. Invoice: 111023-ACDD (Reference: 3 Mailboxes, ABC on Cornerstone.  )  Invoice: 111323-ACDD (Refe... 1,150.00 661,413.21

11/17/2023 2ACH111723 Duke Energy Payment Processing 15301 Aviles PKWY Pump Irrigation 9/26-10/25 30.79 661,382.42

11/17/2023 3ACH111723 Duke Energy Payment Processing 2781 Long Bow Way  Irrigation 9/26- 10/25 30.79 661,351.63

11/17/2023 4ACH111723 Duke Energy Payment Processing 15381 Aviles PKWY Pump Irrigation 9/26- 10/25 30.79 661,320.84

11/17/2023 5ACH111723 Duke Energy Payment Processing 2995 Long Bow Way Irrigation 9/26- 10/25 30.79 661,290.05

11/17/2023 6ACH111723 Duke Energy Payment Processing 14807 Renaissance Ave Irrigation 9/26- 10/25 30.79 661,259.26

11/17/2023 7ACH111723 Duke Energy Payment Processing 15121 Aviles PKWY Pump Irrigatio 9/26- 10/25 30.79 661,228.47

11/17/2023 8ACH111723 Duke Energy Payment Processing 14721 State Road 54 Lite 09/23-10/24 5,624.81 655,603.66

11/17/2023 9ACH111723 Duke Energy Payment Processing 14575 Promenade PKY Pool 9/26- 10/25 977.78 654,625.88

11/17/2023 10ACH111723 Duke Energy Payment Processing 15233 Renaissance Ave Irrigation 9/26-10/25 30.79 654,595.09

11/17/2023 11ACH111723 Duke Energy Payment Processing 15246 Caravan Ave Irrigation 9/26- 10/25 30.79 654,564.30

11/17/2023 12ACH111723 Duke Energy Payment Processing 14731 State Road 54 9/26- 10/25 33.16 654,531.14

11/17/2023 13ACH111723 Duke Energy Payment Processing 15138 Caravan Ave Irrigation 9/26- 10/25 30.79 654,500.35

11/17/2023 14ACH111723 Duke Energy Payment Processing 0000 Aviles PKY Lite PH2 A&B SL 9/23-10/24 2,599.55 651,900.80

11/17/2023 15ACH111723 Duke Energy Payment Processing 0000 Aviles PKY Lite 9/23-10/24 2,034.30 649,866.50

11/17/2023 16ACH111723 Duke Energy Payment Processing 14575 Promenade PKWY Amenity Center 09/26- 10/25 1,131.72 648,734.78

11/17/2023 17ACH111723 Duke Energy Payment Processing 14826 Renaissance Ave Irrigation 9/26 -10/25 30.79 648,703.99

11/17/2023 18ACH111723 Duke Energy Payment Processing 14700 Trails Edge Blvd Irrigation 9/26- 10/25 30.79 648,673.20

11/17/2023 Deposit 30.00 648,703.20

11/17/2023 Deposit 6,120.00 654,823.20

11/17/2023 100174 Complete IT Corp Invoice: 12066 (Reference: Monthly Network/WiFi Svc.  ) 65.00 654,758.20

11/17/2023 100175 Jimerson Birr, PA Invoice: 35627 (Reference: Legal Svcs - Sep 2023.  )  Invoice: 34564 (Reference: Legal Svcs - Au... 1,386.00 653,372.20

11/17/2023 100176 RedTree Landscape Systems, LLC Invoice: 15231 (Reference: Monthly Grounds Maintenance - Nov 2023.  )  Invoice: 15396 (Reference... 20,850.00 632,522.20

l



11/17/2023 1117ACH1 ADP, Inc. Payroll Processing Fees 121.54 632,400.66

11/20/2023 1ACH112023 Pasco County Utilities 14859 Caravan Ave 9/19- 10/19 14.04 632,386.62

11/20/2023 2ACH112023 Pasco County Utilities 14700 Trails Edge Blvd 9/19-10/20 95.16 632,291.46

11/20/2023 3ACH112023 Pasco County Utilities 14450 Promenade Parkway 9/19-10/19 110.76 632,180.70

11/20/2023 4ACH112023 Pasco County Utilities 14400 Trails Edge Blvd 09/19-10/19/23 7.80 632,172.90

11/20/2023 5ACH112023 Pasco County Utilities 2830 Long Bow Way 9/19- 10/19 27.30 632,145.60

11/20/2023 6ACH112023 Pasco County Utilities 0 Promenade Parkway 9/19- 10/19 167.70 631,977.90

11/20/2023 7ACH112023 Pasco County Utilities 15381 Aviles Parkway 9/19- 10/19 9.36 631,968.54

11/20/2023 8ACH112023 Pasco County Utilities 15050 Caravan Ave 9/19- 10/19 26.52 631,942.02

11/20/2023 9ACH112023 Pasco County Utilities 14577 Promenade parkway 9/19- 10/19 12.48 631,929.54

11/20/2023 10ACH112023 Pasco County Utilities 14575 Promenade Parkway 9/19 -10/19 1,110.50 630,819.04

11/20/2023 11ACH112023 Pasco County Utilities 2995 Long Bow Wa 9/19- 10/19 8.58 630,810.46

11/20/2023 12ACH112023 Pasco County Utilities 14502 Promenade Parkway 9/19- 10/19 62.84 630,747.62

11/20/2023 EFT112023 Florida Dept. of Revenue Sales Tax Filing - Oct 2023 30.03 630,717.59

11/20/2023 100177 Jimerson Birr, PA Invoice: 36422 (Reference: Lantower Apts - Pasco Cty levy issue.  ) 70.69 630,646.90

11/20/2023 100178 Berger Toombs Elam Galnes & Frank CPA's Invoice: 364591 (Reference: Basic FS Audit fye 09.30.22.  ) 3,575.00 627,071.90

11/21/2023 1ACH112123 Duke Energy Payment Processing 15165 State Rd 54 Monument 9/26- 10/25 274.88 626,797.02

11/21/2023 PascoTAX 112123 76,888.89 703,685.91

11/27/2023 100179 Complete IT Corp Invoice: 12098 (Reference: Email w/ Vault.  ) 104.65 703,581.26

11/27/2023 100180 Vesta District Services Invoice: 414943 (Reference: Billable Expenses - Oct 2023.  ) 556.25 703,025.01

11/28/2023 Deposit 675.00 703,700.01

11/29/2023 PascoTAX 112923 50,429.32 754,129.33

11/30/2023 Interest 54.00 754,183.33

11/30/2023 241,149.21      64,474.17   754,183.33      
12/01/2023 ACH120123 Frontier  Service 11/7-12/6 79.98 754,103.35

12/01/2023 Deposit 30.00 754,133.35

12/01/2023 100181 Complete IT Corp Invoice: 11461 (Reference: 1-Year Domain Registry.  ) 49.95 754,083.40

12/01/2023 100182 Business Observer Invoice: 23-01929P (Reference: Legal Advertising.  )  Invoice: 23-01930P (Reference: Legal Adver... 133.44 753,949.96

12/01/2023 100183 Suncoast Pool Service Invoice: 9848 (Reference: Swimming Pool Service - Dec 2023.  ) 1,027.00 752,922.96

12/01/2023 100184 Blue Water Aquatics, Inc. Invoice: 30928 (Reference: Pond / Waterway Treatment.  ) 890.00 752,032.96

12/01/2023 100185 KILINSKI VAN WYK, PLLC Invoice: 7836 (Reference: Legal Svcs - Oct 2023.  ) 1,773.13 750,259.83

12/01/2023 100186 Pet Waste Eliminator Invoice: 43282966 (Reference: Pet Waste Disposal.  ) 639.99 749,619.84

12/01/2023 Deposit 208,022.72 957,642.56

12/07/2023 Deposit 1,389,338.24 2,346,980.80

12/08/2023 1061 Lopez & Perez Professional Painting Inc. Painting Clubhouse and Fitness 1,825.00 2,345,155.80

12/08/2023 1208ACH1WC ADP, Inc. Workers Comp 43.67 2,345,112.13

12/08/2023 1208ACH1Tax ADP, Inc. Payroll Tax 183.00 2,344,929.13

12/08/2023 110 Glen Penning P/R BOS Meeting 11/28/23 184.70 2,344,744.43

12/08/2023 1208ACH1 Jean-Jacques Darius P/R BOS Meeting 11/28/23 184.70 2,344,559.73

12/08/2023 1208ACH2 Jonathan Tietz P/R BOS Meeting 11/28/23 184.70 2,344,375.03

12/08/2023 109 Marie Pearson P/R BOS Meeting 11/28/23 184.70 2,344,190.33

12/08/2023 108 Susan Coppa P/R BOS Meeting 11/28/23 160.70 2,344,029.63

12/11/2023 100187 Best Termite and Pest Control, Inc. Invoice: 1240854 (Reference: Monthly Pest Control Service.  ) 55.00 2,343,974.63

12/11/2023 100188 Complete IT Corp Invoice: B688CC27-0010 (Reference: CIT Hosted Phone Seat.  ) 42.30 2,343,932.33

12/11/2023 100189 Electro Sanitation Services Invoice: INV-000030 (Reference: Weekly Cleaning Service - Nov 2023.  ) 1,500.00 2,342,432.33

12/11/2023 100190 RedTree Landscape Systems, LLC Invoice: 15534 (Reference: Monthly Maintenance.  )  Invoice: 15732 (Reference: Irrigation repair... 13,093.50 2,329,338.83

l



12/11/2023 100191 Coastal Waste & Recycling, Inc. Invoice: SW0000453741 (Reference: Monthly Trash PU - Dec 2023.  ) 75.98 2,329,262.85

12/11/2023 100192 Vesta District Services Invoice: 415330 (Reference: District Management Services.  ) 5,000.00 2,324,262.85

12/12/2023 1062 Glen Penning Reimbursement for Amazon purchase 101.65 2,324,161.20

12/13/2023 EFT121323 Florida Dept. of Revenue Sales Tax Filing - Nov 2023 52.21 2,324,108.99

12/13/2023 Deposit 850.00 2,324,958.99

12/14/2023 1063 LLS Tax Solutions, Inc. Arbitrage Services 650.00 2,324,308.99

12/14/2023 Deposit 12,281.44 2,336,590.43

12/15/2023 1215ACH1 ADP, Inc. Payroll Processing Fees 116.80 2,336,473.63

12/18/2023 1ACH121823 Duke Energy Payment Processing 000 Promenade PKY Lite 10/25- 11/22 296.86 2,336,176.77

12/18/2023 2ACH121823 Duke Energy Payment Processing 000 Promenade PKY Lite 10/25-11/22 100.24 2,336,076.53

12/20/2023 1ACH122023 Duke Energy Payment Processing 15138 Caravan Ave Irrigation 10/26- 11/27 30.79 2,336,045.74

12/20/2023 2ACH122023 Duke Energy Payment Processing 2781 Long Bow Way  Irrigation 10/26- 11/27 30.79 2,336,014.95

12/20/2023 3ACH122023 Duke Energy Payment Processing 15301 Aviles PKWY Pump Irrigation 10/26-11/27 30.79 2,335,984.16

12/20/2023 4ACH122023 Duke Energy Payment Processing 0000 Aviles PKY Lite PH2 A&B SL10/25-11/22 2,599.55 2,333,384.61

12/20/2023 5ACH122023 Duke Energy Payment Processing 14575 Promenade PKWY Amenity Center 10/26- 11/27 1,025.85 2,332,358.76

12/20/2023 6ACH122023 Duke Energy Payment Processing 15121 Aviles PKWY Pump Irrigatio 10/26- 11/27 30.79 2,332,327.97

12/20/2023 7ACH122023 Duke Energy Payment Processing 14826 Renaissance Ave Irrigation 10/26 -11/27 30.79 2,332,297.18

12/20/2023 8ACH122023 Duke Energy Payment Processing 14731 State Road 54 10/26- 11/27 37.15 2,332,260.03

12/20/2023 9ACH122023 Duke Energy Payment Processing 14700 Trails Edge Blvd Irrigation 10/26- 11/27 30.79 2,332,229.24

12/20/2023 10ACH122023 Duke Energy Payment Processing 14721 State Road 54 Lite 10/23-11/22 5,624.81 2,326,604.43

12/20/2023 11ACH122023 Duke Energy Payment Processing 15246 Caravan Ave Irrigation 10/26- 11/27 30.79 2,326,573.64

12/20/2023 12ACH122023 Duke Energy Payment Processing 14575 Promenade PKY Pool 10/26- 11/27 1,073.25 2,325,500.39

12/20/2023 13ACH122023 Duke Energy Payment Processing 2995 Long Bow Way Irrigation 10/26- 11/27 30.79 2,325,469.60

12/20/2023 14ACH122023 Duke Energy Payment Processing 15233 Renaissance Ave Irrigation 10/26-11/27 30.79 2,325,438.81

12/20/2023 15ACH122023 Duke Energy Payment Processing 0000 Aviles PKY Lite 10/25-11/22 2,034.30 2,323,404.51

12/20/2023 16ACH122023 Duke Energy Payment Processing 14807 Renaissance Ave Irrigation 10/26- 11/27 30.79 2,323,373.72

12/20/2023 17ACH122023 Duke Energy Payment Processing 15381 Aviles PKWY Pump Irrigation 10/26- 11/27 30.79 2,323,342.93

12/20/2023 1064 Tish Dodson Fitness Center Equipment Reimbursement 4,370.40 2,318,972.53

12/21/2023 1ACH122123 Pasco County Utilities 15233 Renaissance Avenue 10/19-11/17/23 10.14 2,318,962.39

12/21/2023 2ACH12123 Pasco County Utilities 14502 Promenade Parkway10/19- 11/17 64.91 2,318,897.48

12/21/2023 3ACH122123 Pasco County Utilities 14577 Promenade parkway 10/19- 11/17 28.08 2,318,869.40

12/21/2023 4ACH122123 Pasco County Utilities 15381 Aviles Parkway 10/19- 11/17 10.92 2,318,858.48

12/21/2023 5ACH122123 Pasco County Utilities 0 Promenade Parkway 10/19- 11/17 235.56 2,318,622.92

12/21/2023 6ACH122123 Pasco County Utilities 2995 Long Bow Wa 10/19- 11/17 10.14 2,318,612.78

12/21/2023 7ACH122123 Pasco County Utilities 14400 Trails Edge Blvd 10/19-11/17/23 11.70 2,318,601.08

12/21/2023 8ACH122123 Pasco County Utilities 15050 Caravan Ave 10/19- 11/17 40.56 2,318,560.52

12/21/2023 9ACH122123 Pasco County Utilities 15246 Caravan Ave 10/19- 11/17 46.80 2,318,513.72

12/21/2023 10ACH122123 Pasco County Utilities 15121 Aviles Parkway10/19-11/17/23 1.56 2,318,512.16

12/21/2023 11ACH122123 Pasco County Utilities 14859 Caravan Ave109/19- 11/17 34.32 2,318,477.84

12/21/2023 12ACH122123 Pasco County Utilities 14915 Aviles Parkway 10/19-11/17 172.38 2,318,305.46

12/21/2023 14ACH122123 Pasco County Utilities 14700 Trails Edge Blvd 10/19-11/17 87.36 2,318,218.10

12/21/2023 15ACH122123 Pasco County Utilities 2830 Long Bow Way 10/19- 11/17 34.32 2,318,183.78

12/21/2023 16ACH122123 Pasco County Utilities 14575 Promenade Parkway 10/19 -11/17 3,727.00 2,314,456.78

12/21/2023 100193 Complete IT Corp Invoice: 12262 (Reference: Monthly Network/WiFi Svc.  ) 65.00 2,314,391.78

12/21/2023 100194 Vesta District Services Invoice: 415817 (Reference: Billable Expenses - Nov 2023.  ) 1,015.76 2,313,376.02

12/21/2023 13ACH122123 Pasco County Utilities 14450 Promenade Parkway 10/19-11/17 176.28 2,313,199.74

l



12/26/2023 17ACH122623 Duke Energy Payment Processing 15165 State Rd 54 Monument 10/26- 11/27 310.09 2,312,889.65

12/27/2023 Deposit 438.79 2,313,328.44

12/28/2023 1065 Lopez & Perez Professional Painting Inc. Mailbox Painting 1,700.00 2,311,628.44

12/29/2023 Deposit 12,373.46 2,324,001.90

12/29/2023 25 adj to 2022 0.02 2,324,001.88

12/29/2023 Interest 176.15 2,324,178.03

12/31/2023 1,623,510.80   53,516.10   2,324,178.03   

l



 

 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 8 

  

l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



l



EXHIBIT 9 

l



 
 
 
 
January 25, 2024 
 

Mr. Logan Muether 
Asturia Community Development District  
c/o Vesta District Services 
250 International Parkway, Suite 208 
Lake Mary, Florida 32746 
 
 

$11,950,000 
Asturia Community Development District 

(Pasco County, Florida) 
Special Assessment Bonds, Series 2014A-1 and 2014A-2  

(“Bonds”) 
 

Dear Mr. Muether: 
 
Attached you will find our arbitrage rebate report for the above-referenced Bonds for the annual period 
ended December 18, 2023 (“Computation Period”).  This report indicates that there is no cumulative 
rebatable arbitrage liability as of December 18, 2023. 

The next annual arbitrage rebate calculation date is December 18, 2024.  We have provided an 
engagement letter for the next two Computation Periods ending December 18, 2024, and December 18, 
2025, for you to sign and return.  If you have any questions or comments, please do not hesitate to contact 
me at (850) 754-0311 or by email at liscott@llstax.com.   

Sincerely, 

Linda L. Scott 
Linda L. Scott, CPA 
 
cc:  Mr. John Shiroda, Hancock Whitney Bank 
 

l

sconley
Highlight



Asturia Community 
Development District 
$11,950,000 Asturia Community Development District 
(Pasco County, Florida) Special Assessment Bonds, 
Series 2014A-1 and 2014A-2 
 
For the period ended December 18, 2023 
 

l



 

 

January 25, 2024 

 
Asturia Community Development District 
c/o Vesta District Services 
250 International Parkway, Suite 208 
Lake Mary, Florida 32746 
 
Re:  $11,950,000 Asturia Community Development District (Pasco County, Florida) Special Assessment 
Bonds, Series 2014A-1 and 2014A-2 (“Bonds”) 
 
Asturia Community Development District (“Client”) has requested that we prepare certain computations 
related to the above-described Bonds for the period ended December 18, 2023 (“Computation Period”).  
The scope of our engagement consisted of the preparation of computations to determine the Rebatable 
Arbitrage for the Bonds for the Computation Period as described in Section 148(f) of the Internal 
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (“Code”), and this report is not to be used for any other purpose. 

In order to prepare these computations, we were provided by the Client with and have relied upon certain 
closing documents for the Bonds and investment earnings information on the proceeds of the Bonds 
during the Computation Period.  The attached schedule is based upon the aforementioned information 
provided to us.  The assumptions and computational methods we used in the preparation of the schedule 
are described in the Summary of Notes, Assumptions, Definitions, and Source Information.  A brief 
description of the schedule is also attached. 

The results of our computations indicate a negative Cumulative Rebatable Arbitrage of $(757,845.09) at 
December 18, 2023.  As such, no amount must be on deposit in the Rebate Fund. 

As specified in the Form 8038G, the calculations have been performed based upon a Bond Yield of 
5.8486%.  Accordingly, we have not recomputed the Bond Yield. 

The scope of our engagement was limited to the preparation of a mathematically accurate Rebatable 
Arbitrage for the Bonds for the Computation Period based on the information provided to us.  The 
Rebatable Arbitrage has been determined as described in the Code, and regulations promulgated 
thereunder (“Regulations”).  We have no obligation to update this report because of events occurring, or 
information coming to our attention, subsequent to the date of this report. 

LLS Tax Solutions Inc. 

l



NOTES AND ASSUMPTIONS 
 
1. The issue date of the Bonds is December 19, 2014. 

2. The end of the first Bond Year for the Bonds is December 18, 2015. 

3. Computations of yield are based upon a 31-day month, a 360-day year and semiannual 
compounding. 

4. We have assumed that the only funds and accounts relating to the Bonds that are subject to rebate 
under Section 148(f) of the Code are shown in the attached schedule. 

5. For investment cash flow purposes, all payments and receipts are assumed to be paid or received, 
respectively, as shown in the attached schedule.  In determining the Rebatable Arbitrage for the 
Bonds, we have relied on information provided by you without independent verification, and we 
can therefore express no opinion as to the completeness or suitability of such information for such 
purposes.  In addition, we have undertaken no responsibility to review the tax-exempt status of 
interest on the Bonds. 

6. We have assumed that the purchase and sale prices of all investments as represented to us are at 
fair market value, exclusive of brokerage commissions, administrative expenses, or similar 
expenses, and representative of arms’ length transactions that did not artificially reduce the 
Rebatable Arbitrage for the Bonds, and that no “prohibited payments” occurred and no “imputed 
receipts” are required with respect to the Bonds. 

7. Ninety percent (90%) of the Rebatable Arbitrage as of the next “computation date” (“Next 
Computation Date”) is due to the United States Treasury not later than 60 days thereafter (“Next 
Payment Date”).  (An issuer may select any date as a computation date, as long as the first 
computation date is not later than five years after the issue date, and each subsequent computation 
date is no more than five years after the previous computation date.)  No other payment of rebate 
is required prior to the Next Payment Date.  The Rebatable Arbitrage as of the Next Computation 
Date will not be the Rebatable Arbitrage reflected herein but will be based on future 
computations that will include the period ending on the Next Computation Date.  If all of the 
Bonds are retired prior to what would have been the Next Computation Date, one hundred percent 
(100%) of the unpaid Rebatable Arbitrage computed as of the date of retirement will be due to the 
United States Treasury not later than 60 days thereafter.  

8. For purposes of determining what constitutes an “issue” under Section 148(f) of the Code, we 
have assumed that the Bonds constitute a single issue and are not required to be aggregated with 
any other bonds. 

 

l



NOTES AND ASSUMPTIONS (cont’d) 

9. The accrual basis of accounting has been used to calculate earnings on investments.  Earnings 
accrued but not received at the last day of the Computation Period are treated as though received 
on that day.  For investments purchased at a premium or a discount (if any), amortization or 
accretion is included in the earnings accrued at the last day of the Computation Period.  Such 
amortization or accretion is computed in such a manner as to result in a constant rate of return for 
such investment.  This is equivalent to the “present value” method of valuation that is described 
in the Regulations. 

10. No provision has been made in this report for any debt service fund.  Under Section 148(f)(4)(A) 
of the Code, a “bona fide debt service fund” for public purpose bonds issued after November 10, 
1988 is not subject to rebate if the average maturity of the issue of bonds is at least five years and 
the rates of interest on the bonds are fixed at the issue date.  It appears and has been assumed that 
the debt service fund allocable to the Bonds qualifies as a bona fide debt service fund, and that 
this provision applies to the Bonds.  

11. Proceeds of the Series 2014A Bonds were applied to: (a) finance a portion of the Cost of 
acquiring, constructing and equipping assessable improvements of the Series 2014A Project; (b) 
pay certain costs associated with the issuance of the Series 2014A Bonds; (c) make deposits into 
the Series 2014A-1 Debt Service Reserve Account and into the Series 2014A-2 Debt Service 
Reserve Account which accounts will be held jointly for the benefit of all of the Series 2014A 
Bonds, without privilege or priority of one Series 2014A Bonds over another; and (d) pay a 
portion of the interest to become due on the Series 2014A Bonds. 

l



DEFINITIONS 

1. Bond Year: Each one-year period that ends on the day selected by the Client.  The first and last 
Bond Years may be shorter periods. 

2. Bond Yield: The yield that, when used in computing the present value (at the issue date of the 
Bonds) of all scheduled payments of principal and interest to be paid over the life of the Bonds, 
produces an amount equal to the Issue Price. 

3. Allowable Earnings: The amount that would have been earned if all nonpurpose investments were 
invested at a rate equal to the Bond Yield, which amount is determined under a future value 
method described in the Regulations. 

4. Computation Date Credit: A credit allowed by the Regulations as a reduction to the Rebatable 
Arbitrage on certain prescribed dates. 

5. Rebatable Arbitrage: The excess of actual earnings over Allowable Earnings and Computation 
Date Credits. 

6. Issue Price: Generally, the initial offering price at which a substantial portion of the Bonds is sold 
to the public.  For this purpose, 10% is a substantial portion. 

l



SOURCE INFORMATION 

Bonds Source 

Closing Date Form 8038G 

Bond Yield Form 8038G 

Investments Source 

Principal and Interest Receipt Amounts Trust Statements 
  and Dates 

Investment Dates and Purchase Prices Trust Statements 

l



DESCRIPTION OF SCHEDULE 
 
SCHEDULE 1 - REBATABLE ARBITRAGE CALCULATION 

Schedule 1 sets forth the amount of interest receipts and gains/losses on sales of investments and the 
calculation of the Rebatable Arbitrage. 

l



$11,950,000 ASTURIA COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT (PASCO COUNTY, FLORIDA) 

SPECIAL ASSESSMENT BONDS, SERIES 2014A-1 AND 2014A-2

SCHEDULE 1 - REBATABLE ARBITRAGE CALCULATION

12 / 19 / 2014 ISSUE DATE

12 / 19 / 2019 BEGINNING OF COMPUTATION PERIOD

12 / 18 / 2023 COMPUTATION DATE

INVESTMENT EARNINGS OTHER FUTURE VALUE

VALUE AT ON DEPOSITS AT BOND YIELD ALLOWABLE

DATE FUND/ACCOUNT COMPUTATION DATE INVESTMENTS (WITHDRAWALS) 5.8486% EARNINGS

12 / 19 / 2019 BEGINNING BALANCE 0.00 282,331.70 355,494.98 73,163.28

12 / 19 / 2019 INTEREST ACCRUAL REVERSAL (204.77) 0.00 0.00 0.00

1 / 2 / 2020 DEBT SERVICE RESERVE ACCT A-1 357.92 0.00 0.00 0.00

2 / 3 / 2020 DEBT SERVICE RESERVE ACCT A-1 351.88 0.00 0.00 0.00

3 / 2 / 2020 DEBT SERVICE RESERVE ACCT A-1 328.77 0.00 0.00 0.00

3 / 23 / 2020 DEBT SERVICE RESERVE ACCT A-1 0.00 (2,283.50) (2,832.29) (548.79)

4 / 1 / 2020 DEBT SERVICE RESERVE ACCT A-1 195.23 0.00 0.00 0.00

5 / 1 / 2020 DEBT SERVICE RESERVE ACCT A-1 53.46 0.00 0.00 0.00

6 / 1 / 2020 DEBT SERVICE RESERVE ACCT A-1 28.48 0.00 0.00 0.00

7 / 1 / 2020 DEBT SERVICE RESERVE ACCT A-1 18.56 0.00 0.00 0.00

8 / 3 / 2020 DEBT SERVICE RESERVE ACCT A-1 16.04 0.00 0.00 0.00

9 / 1 / 2020 DEBT SERVICE RESERVE ACCT A-1 8.40 0.00 0.00 0.00

9 / 15 / 2020 DEBT SERVICE RESERVE ACCT A-1 0.00 (320.29) (386.47) (66.18)

10 / 1 / 2020 DEBT SERVICE RESERVE ACCT A-1 2.85 0.00 0.00 0.00

11 / 2 / 2020 DEBT SERVICE RESERVE ACCT A-1 0.31 0.00 0.00 0.00

11 / 2 / 2020 DEBT SERVICE RESERVE ACCT A-1 5.38 0.00 0.00 0.00

12 / 1 / 2020 DEBT SERVICE RESERVE ACCT A-1 4.74 0.00 0.00 0.00

1 / 4 / 2021 DEBT SERVICE RESERVE ACCT A-1 5.15 0.00 0.00 0.00

2 / 1 / 2021 DEBT SERVICE RESERVE ACCT A-1 6.23 0.00 0.00 0.00

3 / 1 / 2021 DEBT SERVICE RESERVE ACCT A-1 6.47 0.00 0.00 0.00

4 / 1 / 2021 DEBT SERVICE RESERVE ACCT A-1 8.61 0.00 0.00 0.00

4 / 7 / 2021 DEBT SERVICE RESERVE ACCT A-1 0.00 7,016.99 8,197.44 1,180.45

5 / 3 / 2021 DEBT SERVICE RESERVE ACCT A-1 7.95 0.00 0.00 0.00

6 / 1 / 2021 DEBT SERVICE RESERVE ACCT A-1 6.38 0.00 0.00 0.00

7 / 1 / 2021 DEBT SERVICE RESERVE ACCT A-1 6.18 0.00 0.00 0.00

8 / 2 / 2021 DEBT SERVICE RESERVE ACCT A-1 6.38 0.00 0.00 0.00

9 / 1 / 2021 DEBT SERVICE RESERVE ACCT A-1 6.38 0.00 0.00 0.00

9 / 10 / 2021 DEBT SERVICE RESERVE ACCT A-1 0.00 (41.88) (47.74) (5.86)

10 / 1 / 2021 DEBT SERVICE RESERVE ACCT A-1 6.18 0.00 0.00 0.00

Page 1 l



$11,950,000 ASTURIA COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT (PASCO COUNTY, FLORIDA) 

SPECIAL ASSESSMENT BONDS, SERIES 2014A-1 AND 2014A-2

SCHEDULE 1 - REBATABLE ARBITRAGE CALCULATION

12 / 19 / 2014 ISSUE DATE

12 / 19 / 2019 BEGINNING OF COMPUTATION PERIOD

12 / 18 / 2023 COMPUTATION DATE

INVESTMENT EARNINGS OTHER FUTURE VALUE

VALUE AT ON DEPOSITS AT BOND YIELD ALLOWABLE

DATE FUND/ACCOUNT COMPUTATION DATE INVESTMENTS (WITHDRAWALS) 5.8486% EARNINGS

11 / 1 / 2021 DEBT SERVICE RESERVE ACCT A-1 6.38 0.00 0.00 0.00

12 / 1 / 2021 DEBT SERVICE RESERVE ACCT A-1 6.18 0.00 0.00 0.00

12 / 29 / 2021 DEBT SERVICE RESERVE ACCT A-1 0.01 0.00 0.00 0.00

1 / 3 / 2022 DEBT SERVICE RESERVE ACCT A-1 6.38 0.00 0.00 0.00

2 / 1 / 2022 DEBT SERVICE RESERVE ACCT A-1 6.38 0.00 0.00 0.00

3 / 1 / 2022 DEBT SERVICE RESERVE ACCT A-1 5.76 0.00 0.00 0.00

3 / 15 / 2022 DEBT SERVICE RESERVE ACCT A-1 0.00 (37.27) (41.25) (3.98)

4 / 1 / 2022 DEBT SERVICE RESERVE ACCT A-1 32.91 0.00 0.00 0.00

5 / 2 / 2022 DEBT SERVICE RESERVE ACCT A-1 67.84 0.00 0.00 0.00

6 / 1 / 2022 DEBT SERVICE RESERVE ACCT A-1 153.23 0.00 0.00 0.00

7 / 1 / 2022 DEBT SERVICE RESERVE ACCT A-1 246.48 0.00 0.00 0.00

8 / 1 / 2022 DEBT SERVICE RESERVE ACCT A-1 375.60 0.00 0.00 0.00

9 / 1 / 2022 DEBT SERVICE RESERVE ACCT A-1 514.33 0.00 0.00 0.00

9 / 15 / 2022 DEBT SERVICE RESERVE ACCT A-1 0.00 (1,390.39) (1,495.00) (104.61)

10 / 3 / 2022 DEBT SERVICE RESERVE ACCT A-1 579.39 0.00 0.00 0.00

11 / 1 / 2022 DEBT SERVICE RESERVE ACCT A-1 732.28 0.00 0.00 0.00

12 / 1 / 2022 DEBT SERVICE RESERVE ACCT A-1 867.23 0.00 0.00 0.00

1 / 3 / 2023 DEBT SERVICE RESERVE ACCT A-1 972.12 0.00 0.00 0.00

2 / 1 / 2023 DEBT SERVICE RESERVE ACCT A-1 1,036.10 0.00 0.00 0.00

3 / 1 / 2023 DEBT SERVICE RESERVE ACCT A-1 994.61 0.00 0.00 0.00

3 / 15 / 2023 DEBT SERVICE RESERVE ACCT A-1 0.00 (5,181.73) (5,413.28) (231.55)

4 / 3 / 2023 DEBT SERVICE RESERVE ACCT A-1 1,121.77 0.00 0.00 0.00

5 / 1 / 2023 DEBT SERVICE RESERVE ACCT A-1 1,128.46 0.00 0.00 0.00

6 / 1 / 2023 DEBT SERVICE RESERVE ACCT A-1 1,221.61 0.00 0.00 0.00

7 / 3 / 2023 DEBT SERVICE RESERVE ACCT A-1 1,198.99 0.00 0.00 0.00

8 / 1 / 2023 DEBT SERVICE RESERVE ACCT A-1 1,254.63 0.00 0.00 0.00

9 / 1 / 2023 DEBT SERVICE RESERVE ACCT A-1 1,301.14 0.00 0.00 0.00

10 / 2 / 2023 DEBT SERVICE RESERVE ACCT A-1 1,267.18 0.00 0.00 0.00

10 / 13 / 2023 DEBT SERVICE RESERVE ACCT A-1 0.00 (8,493.78) (8,582.65) (88.87)

Page 2 l



$11,950,000 ASTURIA COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT (PASCO COUNTY, FLORIDA) 

SPECIAL ASSESSMENT BONDS, SERIES 2014A-1 AND 2014A-2

SCHEDULE 1 - REBATABLE ARBITRAGE CALCULATION

12 / 19 / 2014 ISSUE DATE

12 / 19 / 2019 BEGINNING OF COMPUTATION PERIOD

12 / 18 / 2023 COMPUTATION DATE

INVESTMENT EARNINGS OTHER FUTURE VALUE

VALUE AT ON DEPOSITS AT BOND YIELD ALLOWABLE

DATE FUND/ACCOUNT COMPUTATION DATE INVESTMENTS (WITHDRAWALS) 5.8486% EARNINGS

11 / 1 / 2023 DEBT SERVICE RESERVE ACCT A-1 1,296.42 0.00 0.00 0.00

12 / 1 / 2023 DEBT SERVICE RESERVE ACCT A-1 1,248.30 0.00 0.00 0.00

12 / 18 / 2023 INTEREST ACCRUAL 737.90 0.00 0.00 0.00

291,212.62 19,612.77 271,599.85 344,893.74 73,293.89

ACTUAL EARNINGS 19,612.77

ALLOWABLE EARNINGS 73,293.89

REBATABLE ARBITRAGE (53,681.12)

FUTURE VALUE OF 12/18/2019 CUMULATIVE REBATABLE ARBITRAGE (696,175.58)

FUTURE VALUE OF 12/18/2020 COMPUTATION DATE CREDIT (2,092.28)

FUTURE VALUE OF 12/18/2021 COMPUTATION DATE CREDIT (1,997.52)

FUTURE VALUE OF 12/18/2022 COMPUTATION DATE CREDIT (1,938.59)

COMPUTATION DATE CREDIT

CUMULATIVE REBATABLE ARBITRAGE

(1,960.00)

(757,845.09)

Page 3 l



 

 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 10 

  

l



1 
 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF SECOND RENEWAL 

 

 This Acknowledgment of Second Renewal (the “Acknowledgment”) is made effective this 20th 

day of December, 2023, by and between: ASTURIA COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, a local unit 

of special purpose government established pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes (the “District”); and 

REDTREE LANDSCAPE SYSTEMS, LLC, a Florida limited liability company (the “Contractor” and, 

together with the District, the “Parties”). 

 

RECITALS 

 

WHEREAS, the District and the Contractor previously entered into that certain Landscape & 

Irrigation Maintenance Services Agreement, dated December 28, 2022 (the “Agreement”); and 

 

WHEREAS, Section 3 of the Agreement provides that the initial term of the Agreement shall be for 

one (1) year, and the District shall have the option to renew the Agreement pursuant to the same terms and 

dollar amounts for two (2) additional one (1) year terms; and 

 

WHEREAS, at a meeting of the District’s Board of Supervisors (the “Board”) on December 19, 

2023, the Board authorized renewal of the Agreement for an additional one (1) year term; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Parties now desire to acknowledge the District’s decision to renew the Agreement 

for an additional one (1) year term beginning December 28, 2023.  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, based upon good and valuable consideration and the mutual covenants of the 

parties, the receipt of which and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the District and the 

Contractor hereby agree as follows: 

 

1. RECITALS.  The foregoing recitals are true and correct and by this reference are 

incorporated as a material part of this Amendment. 

 

2. RENEWAL.  The Parties acknowledge that the Agreement shall be renewed effective 

December 28, 2023, for an additional one (1) year term. Such renewal shall be subject to all provisions set 

forth in the Agreement, including but not limited to Section 6, “Compensation.” The Agreement remains 

in full force and effect. 

 

4. AUTHORITY.  By execution below, the undersigned represent that they have been duly 

authorized by the appropriate body or official of their respective entity to execute this instrument, and that 

the respective parties have complied with all requirements of law and have full power and authority to 

comply with the terms and provisions of the Agreement. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties execute this Acknowledgment the day and year first written 

above. 

 

REDTREE LANDSCAPE SYSTEMS, LLC 

 

 

__________________________ 

By:________________________ 

Its:________________________ 

Date:_______________________ 

ASTURIA COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

DISTRICT  

 

____________________________ 

Chairman, Board of Supervisors 

 

Date:__________________________ 

 

l



 

 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 11 

  

l



 January 29, 2024                                                                                                          Proposal #16347124 

 Contact  Customer  Job 
 Tish Dobson                                                   Vesta Property Services                     Asturia Clubhouse 
 Cell: 813 758-4148                                        250 Interna onal Drive Ste 208       14575 Promenade Parkway 
 tdobson  @vestapropertyservices.com  Lake Mary,  FL 32746                          Odessa  , FL 33545 

 PROPERTY IMPROVEMENTS 

 Striping 

 Scope of work: 
 1.  Restripe using DOT approved latex paint 1 handicap stall and 24 parking stalls. 
 2.  Clean up job site related materials. 

 Labor and Material - $1,057.00 

 Notes: 
 *DUE TO THE CRITICAL NATURE OF ESCALATING MATERIAL COSTS, MATERIAL PRICES ARE SUBJECT TO 
 POTENTIAL MONTHLY, WEEKLY OR DAILY CHANGES. SHOULD THIS SITUATION ARISE, ACPLM WILL 
 PROVIDE DOCUMENTATION OF MATERIAL ADJUSTMENT(S). A BILLABLE CHANGE ORDER MAY BE 
 REQUIRED DUE TO THESE CHANGES. 

 *WORK TO BE DONE IN ONE MOBILIZATION, WHICH COVERS THE DURATION AND COMPLETION OF 
 THE PROJECT. IF ADDITIONAL MOBILIZATIONS ARE REQUESTED BY THE CUSTOMER THE ADDITIONAL 
 MOBILIZATIONS WILL BE AN EXTRA CHARGE. 

 *PROPOSAL DOES NOT INCLUDE TESTING, LANE CLOSURE, M.O.T., IMPACT FEES, SURVEYING, EROSION 
 CONTROL, AS-BUILTS, SHOP DRAWINGS AND ENGINEERING. ANY ADDITIONAL WORK REQUIRED BY ANY 
 ADDITIONAL ITEMS, WILL BE AN EXTRA  COST TO BE PAID BY THE  CUSTOMER. 

 *ACPLM CANNOT GUARANTEE THE SAME CRISP, BRIGHT APPEARANCE THAT IS EVIDENT AFTER 
 RESTRIPING A PARKING LOT THAT HAS BEEN FRESHLY SEALED OR NEWLY PAVED. 

 *ACPLM CANNOT GUARANTEE AGAINST FUTURE BLISTERING, FLAKING OR PEELING OF PREVIOUSLY PAINTED 
 OR STRIPED AREAS. 

 *GLASS BEADS ARE HAND THROWN AND WILL NOT BE EVEN THROUGHOUT THE STRIPING. 

l



 January 29, 2024                                                                                                          Proposal #16347124 

 Contact  Customer  Job 
 Tish Dobson                                                   Vesta Property Services                     Asturia Clubhouse 
 Cell: 813 758-4148                                        250 Interna onal Drive Ste 208       14575 Promenade Parkway 
 tdobson  @vestapropertyservices.com  Lake Mary,  FL 32746                          Odessa  , FL 33545 

 PROPERTY IMPROVEMENTS 

 Notes con nued  : 
 *THE NEW PAINT FOR RESTRIPING WILL NOT GO TO THE SIDEWALK, CURB NOR TO THE EDGE OF 
 PAVEMENT DUE TO THE PLACEMENT EXISTING CAR STOPS. 

 *THE PAINT ON PREVIOUSLY PAINTED ITEMS IS OLD, PEELING AND FLAKING. ACPLM RECOMMENDS 
 THAT THE CUSTOMER HAVE ALL PREVIOUSLY PAINTED ITEMS PRESSURE WASHED PRIOR TO START OF 
 WORK SO AS TO REMOVE AS MUCH LOOSE PAINT AS POSSIBLE. IF PREVIOUSLY PAINTED ITEMS ARE 
 NOT PRESSURE WASHED, ACPLM CANNOT GUARANTEE THE NEW PAINT WILL NOT CAUSE MORE 
 PEELING AND FLAKING. 

 *CUSTOMER IS RESPONSIBLE FOR REMOVING ANY MATERIALS, OBJECTS, STRUCTURES, CONTAINERS 
 FROM AREA TO BE STRIPED. 

 *IT IS THE CUSTOMER’S RESPONSIBILITY TO HAVE A TOWING COMPANY ON SITE AND AVAILABLE FOR 
 TOWING VEHICLES OBSTRUCTING THE JOB SITE. IF VEHICLES CANNOT BE MOVED IN A TIMELY 
 MANNER, WE WILL NEED TO RESCHEDULE THE WORK AND A CHANGE ORDER WILL BE REQUIRED FOR 
 THE ADDITIONAL MOBILIZATION. 

 *BARRICADES WILL BE PROVIDED TO CLOSE OFF WORK AREAS. ACPLM IS NOT RESPONSIBLE FOR 
 PERSONS ENTERING AREAS CLOSED OFF WITH BARRICADES AND TRACKING MATERIAL, FOR DAMAGE 
 TO PROPERTY OR INJURY TO PERSONS ENTERING THE AREA. 

 *PERMIT FEES AND PROCUREMENT FEES ARE NOT INCLUDED. THE COST OF THE PERMIT, IF 
 REQUIRED, AND ALL COSTS ASSOCIATED WITH OBTAINING A PERMIT, AND ANY ADDITIONAL WORK, 
 TESTING OR INSPECTIONS REQUIRED BY THE PERMIT, WILL BE AN EXTRA COST THAT SHALL BE PAID 
 BY THE CUSTOMER. 

 *90% OF THE CONTRACT AMOUNT AND CHANGE ORDERS MUST BE PAID PRIOR TO COMPLETING 
 PUNCH LIST ITEMS AND/OR CHANGES FOR ADDITIONAL WORK REQUIRED BY CITIES OR 
 MUNICIPALITIES. 

 *MATERIAL AND WORKMANSHIP ARE GUARANTEED FOR 12 MONTHS. 

l



 January 29, 2024                                                                                                          Proposal #16347124 

 Contact  Customer  Job 
 Tish Dobson                                                   Vesta Property Services                     Asturia Clubhouse 
 Cell: 813 758-4148                                        250 Interna onal Drive Ste 208       14575 Promenade Parkway 
 tdobson  @vestapropertyservices.com  Lake Mary,  FL 32746                          Odessa  , FL 33545 

 PROPERTY IMPROVEMENTS 

 Customer Billing Informa on 
 Thank you for choosing ACPLM. To ensure we contact the correct person for any billing correspondence and 
 ques ons, please fill out the Billing Contact Informa on below and send back with your signed proposal. We 
 look forward to working with you. 

 The terms of your contract are  : 

 Net Upon Substan al Comple on 

 If Paying by ACH Payment the ACH Fees Will Be Added to the Invoiced Amount Due 

 Acceptance of Terms – Payment will be made as outlined above. All payments later than 30 days a er 
 the due date shall bear interest at 18% per annum. 

 Bill To Name and Address  : 

 Job Site Name and Address: 

 Billing Contact Name  : 

 Billing Phone Number  : 

 Email Address  : 

 Billing Instruc ons: 

l



 January 29, 2024                                                                                                          Proposal #16347124 

 Contact  Customer  Job 
 Tish Dobson                                                   Vesta Property Services                     Asturia Clubhouse 
 Cell: 813 758-4148                                        250 Interna onal Drive Ste 208       14575 Promenade Parkway 
 tdobson  @vestapropertyservices.com  Lake Mary,  FL 32746                          Odessa  , FL 33545 

 PROPERTY IMPROVEMENTS 

 Terms:  Net Upon Substan al Comple on 

 If Paying by ACH Payment the ACH Fees Will Be Added to the Invoiced Amount Due 

 ACPLM Authorized Signature ____________  Cu ti  Timoth   ______________________________ 
 Cur s Timothy 

 Cell 813 509-7784 c mothy  @acplm.  net) 

 Acceptance of Proposal – The above prices, specifica ons and condi ons are sa sfactory and are hereby 
 accepted. You are authorized to do the work as specified. Payment will be made as outlined above. All payments 
 later than 30 days a er the due date shall bear interest at 18% per annum.    

 Date of Acceptance _______________________________________________________________ 

 Customer’s Authorized Signature _____________________________________________________ 

 Terms and Condi on: Payment is due in full upon project comple on unless prior arrangements have been made in advance. 
 If any legal ac on arises out of this agreement or breach thereof, the customer will be responsible for all a orney fees and incurred 
 late fees. Any altera on of devia on from the above specifica ons involving extra costs of material or labor will be an addi onal 
 charge outside of the scope listed in this proposal.  Sprinkler systems on the property are to be off for the dura on of the project. 
 Customer assumes responsibility for removing all vehicles from the area outlined above.  

 All material is guaranteed to be as specified.  All work to be completed in a workmanlike manner according to standard 
 prac ces. Any altera on or authorized devia on from the original specifica ons, involving extra cost, to be executed only upon 
 receiving wri en change orders and will become an extra charge over and above this es mate. All agreements con ngent upon strikes, 
 accidents, weather or delays beyond our control. Owner to carry fire, tornado and other necessary insurance. Our employees are fully 
 covered by Workers Compensa on Insurance. Due to the unpredictable movement of material and produc on costs, this proposal is 
 good for 10 days from the proposed date, a er which prices are subject to change to accommodate current  industry pricing. 

 Proposal Amount - $1,057.00 

l



l



l



 

 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 12 

  

l



 

January 25, 2024 

 
Asturia Community Development District  
c/o Vesta District Services 
250 International Parkway, Suite 208  
Lake Mary, Florida 32746 
 
Thank you for choosing LLS Tax Solutions Inc. (“LLS Tax”) to provide arbitrage services to Asturia 
Community Development District (“Client”) for the following bond issue.  This Engagement Letter 
describes the scope of the LLS Tax services, the respective responsibilities of LLS Tax and Client 
relating to this engagement and the fees LLS Tax expects to charge. 

•    $11,950,000 Asturia Community Development District (Pasco County, Florida) Special 
Assessment Bonds, Series 2014A-1 and 2014A-2  

 
SCOPE OF SERVICES 

The procedures that we will perform are as follows: 

• Assist in calculation of the bond yield, unless previously computed and provided to us. 

• Assist in determination of the amount, if any, of required rebate to the federal government. 

• Issuance of a report presenting the cumulative results since the issue date of the issue of bonds. 

• Preparation of necessary reports and Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”) forms to accompany any 
required payment to the federal government. 

As a part of our engagement, we will read certain documents associated with each issue of bonds for 
which services are being rendered.  We will determine gross proceeds of each issue of bonds based on 
the information provided in such bond documents.  You will have sole responsibility for determining 
any other amounts not discussed in those documents that may constitute gross proceeds of each series 
of bonds for the purposes of the arbitrage requirements.   

TAX POSITIONS AND REPORTABLE TRANSACTIONS 

Because the tax law is not always clear, we will use our professional judgment in resolving questions 
affecting the arbitrage calculations.  Unless you instruct us otherwise, we will take the reporting 
position most favorable to you whenever reasonable.  Any of your bond issues may be selected for 
review by the IRS, which may not agree with our positions.  Any proposed adjustments are subject to 
certain rights of appeal.  Because of the lack of clarity in the law, we cannot provide assurances that 

l

sconley
Highlight



the positions asserted by the IRS may not ultimately be sustained, which could result in the assessment 
of potential penalties.  You have the ultimate responsibility for your compliance with the arbitrage 
laws; therefore, you should review the calculations carefully. 

The IRS and some states have promulgated “tax shelter” rules that require taxpayers to disclose their 
participation in “reportable transactions” by attaching a disclosure form to their federal and/or state 
income tax returns and, when necessary, by filing a copy with the Internal Revenue Service and/or the 
applicable state agency.  These rules impose significant requirements to disclose transactions and such 
disclosures may encompass many transactions entered into in the normal course of business.  Failure 
to make such disclosures will result in substantial penalties.  In addition, an excise tax is imposed on 
exempt organizations (including state and local governments) that are a party to prohibited tax shelter 
transactions (which are defined using the reportable transaction rules).  Client is responsible for 
ensuring that it has properly disclosed all “reportable transactions” and, where applicable, complied 
with the excise tax provision.  The LLS Tax services that are the subject of this Engagement Letter do 
not include any undertaking by LLS Tax to identify any reportable transactions that have not been the 
subject of a prior consultation between LLS Tax and Client.  Such services, if desired by Client, will 
be the subject of a separate engagement letter.  LLS Tax may also be required to report to the IRS or 
certain state tax authorities certain tax services or transactions as well as Client’s participation therein.  
The determination of whether, when and to what extent LLS Tax complies with its federal or state “tax 
shelter” reporting requirements will be made exclusively by LLS Tax.  LLS Tax will not be liable for 
any penalties resulting from Client’s failure to accurately and timely file any required disclosure or 
pay any related excise tax nor will LLS Tax be held responsible for any consequences of its own 
compliance with its reporting obligations.  Please note that any disclosure required by or made 
pursuant to the tax shelter rules is separate and distinct from any other disclosure that Client might be 
required to or choose to make with its tax returns (e.g., disclosure on federal Form 8275 or similar 
state disclosure). 

PROFESSIONAL FEES AND EXPENSES 

Our professional fees for the services listed above for the two annual bond years ending December 18, 
2024, and December 18, 2025, is $1,300, which is $650 for each year.  We will bill you upon 
completion of our services.  Our invoices are payable upon receipt.  Additionally, you may request 
additional consulting services from us upon occasion; we will bill you for these consulting services at 
a beforehand agreed upon rate. 

Unanticipated factors that could increase our fees beyond the estimate given above include the 
following (without limitation).  Should any of these factors arise we will alert you before additional 
fees are incurred. 

• Investment data provided by you is not in good order or is unusually voluminous. 

• Proceeds of bonds have been commingled with amounts not considered gross proceeds of the 
bonds (if that circumstance has not previously been communicated to us). 

• A review or other inquiry by the IRS with respect to an issue of bonds. 

The Client (District) has the option to terminate this Agreement within ninety days of providing notice 
to LLS Tax Solutions Inc. of its intent. 

 

 

l

sconley
Highlight



ACCEPTANCE 

You understand that the arbitrage services, report and IRS forms described above are solely to assist 
you in meeting your requirements for federal income tax compliance purposes.  This Engagement 
Letter constitutes the entire agreement between Client and LLS Tax with respect to this engagement, 
supersedes all other oral and written representations, understandings or agreements relating to this 
engagement, and may not be amended except by the mutual written agreement of the Client and LLS 
Tax. 

Please indicate your acceptance of this agreement by signing in the space provided below and 
returning a copy of this Engagement Letter to us.   Thank you again for this opportunity to work with 
you. 

Very truly yours, AGREED AND ACCEPTED: 
LLS Tax Solutions Inc. Asturia Community Development District 

  By:    

By: Linda L. Scott   Print Name    

 Linda L. Scott, CPA Title    

  Date:    
 
 

 

l



 

 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 13 

  

l



Quote
Date

1/29/2024

Quote #

15093

Name / Address

Asturia Amenity Center HINES
Tish Dobson
14575 Promenade Pkwy
Odessa, FL 33556

7823 N Dale Mabry Hwy STE 107
Tampa, FL 33614

Rep

KM

Phone #

813-870-2966

Fax #

813-870-2896

Total

Subtotal

Sales Tax  (0.0%)

Item Description Qty Cost Total

FITNESS BENCH
Parts PAD REUPHOLSTERED 1 155.00 155.00T
Labor Labor 1 80.00 80.00
Freight Sales (INV) Freight Charges are subject to change 25.00 25.00

This quote becomes an order with signature approval and returned to service@fitrev.com

$260.00

$260.00

$0.00

l


	@1 Cvr Reg Mtg
	@2024-01-30 Draft Agenda - AST
	1 EXHIBIT COVERS 1
	1a Kass Shuler (Moczynski) - AST Amended RFQ Response
	2 EXHIBIT COVERS 2
	2a RedTree - Ast CENTER ISLAND END CAP PLANTING $1,750
	3 EXHIBIT COVERS 3
	3a RedTree - AST Additional Mulch (50cu.yds) $2,750
	4 EXHIBIT COVERS 4
	4a Blue Water Aquatics - Ast report
	5 EXHIBIT COVERS 5
	5a Asturia DM - FO Report Jan. 2024
	6 EXHIBIT COVERS 6
	6a 2023-12-19 AST Meeting Minutes - DRAFT
	7 EXHIBIT COVERS 7
	7a Asturia - December 2023 Fin
	8 EXHIBIT COVERS 8
	8a Asturia - Dec 2023 Invoices
	9 EXHIBIT COVERS 9
	9a AST 2023 Arbitrage Report - 2014A-1 A-2
	coverltr
	report
	NOTES AND ASSUMPTIONS (cont’d)
	DEFINITIONS
	SOURCE INFORMATION
	Bonds Source
	Investments Source

	Schedule 1 - Rebatable Arbitrage Calculation

	2023 sch
	reportcopy


	10 EXHIBIT COVERS 10
	10a RedTree - AST Second Renewal of Landscaping Agreement
	11 EXHIBIT COVERS 11
	11a Romaner Graphics - AST Clubhouse parking lot striping $1,400
	12 EXHIBIT COVERS 12
	12a LLS Tax Solutions - Ast Arbitrage Reporting Engagement Ltr - 2014A-1 A-2
	By:
	By: Linda L. Scott   Print Name
	Date:

	13 EXHIBIT COVERS 13
	13a FitRev - AST Fitness Bench pad Reupholser - $260



